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St Tammany Parish Sheriff's Office 
RANDY SMITH, Sheriff 

PROFESSIONALISM • INTEGRITY • ACCOUNTABILITY • PUBLIC TRUST 

December 21, 2018 

To the Citizens of St. Tammany Parish: 

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is hereby submitted for the fiscal period July 
1,2017-June 30, 2018. Statelawrequiresthatevery general purpose local government publish, within 
six months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of intemal control that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of intemal control the St. Tammany Parish Sheriff's 
Office's financial statements have been audited by Leblanc Hausknecht, LLP, a firm of licensed 
certified public accountants. Based upon the audit, the independent auditors have issued an 
unmodified opinion on the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs office financial statements for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2018. The independent auditor's report is presented in the financial section of this 
report. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. 
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the St. Tammany Parish Sherifi^s Office 

Formed in 1812, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office is a stand-alone political entity lead by an 
elected Sheriff providing leadership and guidance in the area of law enforcement and public safety. St. 
Tammany Parish, located in southeast Louisiana, has the fourth largest population in the state with 
an estimated 256,000 residents. 

As provided by Article V, Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, the St. Tammany Parish 
Sheriff serves a four-year term as the Chief Executive Officer of the Law Enforcement District, and is 
responsible for executing all court orders and processes, such as providing bailiffs, executing orders of 
the court, serving subpoenas, et cetera. Louisiana state law also stipulates that the Sheriff is 
responsible for collecting and dispersing all parish ad valorem taxes, parish occupational license fees, 
state revenue sharing funds, fines and costs, and bond forfeitures imposed by the district court. 

In 1992, the Sheriff began serving as Ex-Officio Tax-Collector, with duties including the collection 
and distribution of taxes on behalf of various taxing bodies of St. Tammany Parish. Those duties have 
expanded to include the collection of taxes for local municipalities, such as Madisonville, Slidell, and 

Slidell Administrative Building P.O. Box 1229 Slidell, LA 70459 (985) 726-8000 
Covington Office P.O. Box 1120 Covington, LA 70434 (985) 809-8200 
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Pearl River. These duties are first and foremost our fiduciary duty. Transparency and control are 
always on the forefront of our policies and procedures. Our accolades remain a testament to our 
achievement. 

In addition to being responsible for enforcing the laws and collecting the taxes for the parish, the St. 
Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office is also responsible for staffing and operating the parish jail, as well 
as providing security for the Justice Center. Both facilities are owned by the St. Tammany Parish 
Government. 

As a multiple purpose agency, we strive to maintain accountability and dehver excellent public service. 
We continue to strike a delicate balance between provisions and needs. This goes beyond technology 
and equipment; it includes our greatest asset, our employees. 

Although the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office primary function is law enforcement, we are one 
of the most diverse employers in the area. The Sheriffs Office has a staff of scientists, attorneys, 
technology specialists, accountants as well as enforcement personnel and other business professionals 
in thirty-three departments. We work dihgently to continually recruit top employees offering on-going 
training resources, education incentives, and benefits package. Advancement opportunities are made 
available to all staff. With a current rate of 65% of employees with over five years of service with the 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office, we are making strides to retain staff. 

Budget Preparation 

Many sheriffs throughout the nation fall under the financial direction of a county-wide governing 
authority, such as a county board of commissioners or a lone County Chairperson. However, in 
Louisiana, Sheriffs are financially autonomous. The Sheriff, as a separately elected official overseeing 
a separate legal entity that is not dependent on the Parish Council for revenues, is considered a "stand­
alone" government. 

Our budget creation and approval process falls entirely within the control of the St. Tammany Parish 
Sheriff. The Sheriff approves and adopts the budget. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office budget is a reflection of policies, goals, and priorities. It 
communicates to citizens and staff what decisions have been made, including those involving staffing, 
technology, and equipment. It also serves as a platform for the entity's plan for the upcoming fiscal 
year, and a blueprint for achieving the fiscal stability necessary to carry out the Sheriffs mission, vision 
and core values. It includes performance measures as well as departmental goals by which the delivery 
of service to the public is measured. 

Conservative fiscal policies, adequate fund balances and long term planning continue to place the 
Sheriffs Office in a position to handle challenges of balancing the budget while at the same time 
maintaining services to the citizens. 

The budget process begins in January of each year, with a call for budget requests by various 
department heads throu^out the agency. Operating expenditures, under the direct control of 
Department Heads, are submitted with justifications to the Finance Department. Requests for budget 
allocations must be justified in detail, regardless of the category for which the request is made. 
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Once these requests have been received from all departments, meetings are held between the Sheriff, 
his Chief Deputy and Deputy Chiefs; the budget staff, and the various department managers. During 
these meetings, each department manager must provide an oral defense of his or her requests in front 
of the assembled group. If reductions are to be made to a request, they may be made during the 
manager's presentation, or they may come later during final discussions between the Sheriff and 
executive staff. 

After final review by the Sheriff, the budget document, along with all statutorily mandated supporting 
documentation (including executive summary, financial statements, estimate of revenue and 
expenditures for all accounts, statements of any fund balances, etc.) is then prepared by the Budget 
Manager and Chief Financial Officer. 

The Sheriff maintains a system of budgetary controls with the objective of ensuring spending is within 
the appropriated budget. The Sheriff also uses a centralized purchasing system that uses an 
encumbrance accounting system as one method to accomphsh budgetary control. 

After both the preparation of the final budget document is complete and at least ten days before the 
public is invited to submit comments at a pubhc hearing held, the proposed budget is published in the 
official journal of St. Tammany Parish. The completed budget is made available for public inspection 
no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. At the conclusion of this public 
hearing, assuming no other changes are to be made, the Sheriff officially adopts the budget as 
authorized in Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1305. 

Local Economy 

St. Tammany Parish Government reports confidence in our local economy as both single-family new 
construction and commercial permits were up in the first two quarters of 2018 over the same period 
in 2017. Historically, the number of permits represents the economic health of our parish. 



The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics reports 4.3 percent unemployment in St. Tammany Parish during 
fiscal year 2018, compared to 5 percent last year, while the unemployment in the United States 
dropped to 4.2 from 4.5 percent last year. The consumer price index has increased 2.7 percent in the 
South region compared to 2.9 percent for all U.S. cities on average. 

Louisiana is finally emerging from a recession due to a dramatic downtum in the state's oil patch. 
The recovery is strengthened by a growing national economy, low inflation, and a slight increase in 
interest rates. According to the Louisiana State University's Division of Business Research, the New 
Orleans metro area (which includes St. Tammany Parish) will grow at 0.8 percent in 2018 and 1.3 
percent in 2019. 

The New Orleans metro area is projected to be the third fastest growing area in the state. Louisiana 
has many competitive advantages being a state of opportunity for businesses: robust infrastructure, 
low business operating costs, and highly trained workers. 

Revenue Sources 

The four major revenue sources that comprise of approximately 75% of all the revenue received for 
Sheriffs Office operations are: 

• Ad Valorem Taxes 
• Sales and Use Taxes 
• Transfer from St. Tammany Parish Council 
• Keeping of Prisoners 

Major Revenue Sources 
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Ad valorem (Property Tax^ 

The Law Enforcement District levies 11.66 mills of ad valorem (property tax), which makes up 45.2% 
of the overall revenue in the General Fund. 

Property evaluation is affixed to a January date, however taxes are collected in arrears at the end 
of each calendar year. This means our tax year collections are actually performed during the 
subsequent fiscal year. At the present, this translates to the collection of ad valorem taxes for the 2017 
tax year occurring within our 2018 fiscal year. 



St. Tammany Parish continues to experience modest growth in residential and commercial 
development and valuation. As such, ad valorem revenues are expected to continue the steady growth 
seen over the past two decades. 

Below is a breakdown of ad valorem taxes for the last 10 tax years, and it is based on the St. Tammany 
Parish Assessor's Grand Recap. 

St. Tammany Parish 
Total Taxable Value - Ad Valorem Tax by Year 
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There are portions of the original tax roll that are uncollectible each year. Change orders make up the 
largest uncollectible portion, as these are property value adjustments approved by the local Assessor's 
Office and Louisiana Tax Commission. The other uncollectible component consists of delinquent 
properties that go to our annual tax sale which adjudicate (are not purchased) and await redemption 
at some unknown point in the future. 

Sales and Use Taxes 

The Law Enforcement District levies a 0.25% sales and use tax. It was last approved in March 2008 
and was made permanent at that time. Sales tax revenues tend to be budgeted conservatively due to 
their volatile nature being intrinsically tied to economic performance and consumer confidence. Sales 
tax makes up 23.5% of the overall revenue in the General Fund. 

Below is a breakdown of sales and use taxes collected in the Parish for the last 10 fiscal years. 
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Sales tax revenue show no significant change between the fiscal years 2017 and 2018. Newly 
registered sales and use tax accounts totaled 1,147 in comparison to the number of accounts that 
closed, 1,287. 

Offsetting the effects of the loss of tax revenue from closed businesses are retail outlets that are 
investing in our parish by constructing new locations or are choosing St. Tammany as their new home. 

In addition to businesses physically located in St. Tammany, there has been an increase in online 
retailers that have voluntarily registered to collect local sales tax. Many did so proactively before the 
recent United States Supreme Court ruling in South Dakota v. Wayfair, Inc. which removed 
prohibitions against intemet taxation. As a result, many more are expected to follow. 

Transfer from St. Tammanv Parish Council 

The Sheriffs Office shares the financial responsibility over the jail with the St. Tammany Parish 
Government. We are currently under negotiations with the St. Tammany Parish Government over 
the reimbursable amount due to the Sheriff. 

Until April 1,2018, a dedicated sales tax for jail operations was in effect for twenty years. Not receiving 
voter approval, the sales tax expired in March 2018. 

In anticipation of voters' rejection of the sales taxes. Sheriff Smith began reducing expenses and 
trimmed the employee roster by more than 100 positions. Now we can say that we worked well 
through the budget shortfalls while preserving safety of our citizens as a number one priority. 

Transfers from the St. Tammany Parish Council account for 46.4% of the overall revenue in the Jail 
Fund. The existing fund balance in the Jail Special Revenue Fund will be used in fiscal year 2019 to 
cover the revenue loss. 

Keeping of Prisoners 

Keeping of Prisoners accounts for 35.8% of the overall revenue in the Jail Fund. This revenue source 
is derived from agreements with Louisiana Department of Corrections, U.S. Department of Justice -
United States Marshals Service, Bureau of Prisons, and Department of Homeland Security. These 
agreements allow the St. Tammany Parish Jail to house state and federal detainees. The population 
includes individuals charged with offenses being detained while awaiting trial; individuals who have 
been sentenced and are awaiting designation and transport to different facihties; and individuals who 
are awaiting a hearing on their immigration status or deportation. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office provides secure custody, safekeeping, housing, subsistence 
and care of detainees in accordance with all state and local laws, standards, regulations, policies and 
court orders applicable to the operation of the jail. In exchange, the agency is reimbursed based on a 
specific and agreed upon per-diem rate. State and federal agencies are billed monthly based upon daily 
population. 

Overview of Crime Statistics 

For obvious reasons, crime greatly impacts the operations of the Sheriffs Office. 



There are numerous ways to measure crime and the effectiveness of local law enforcement in a 
particular area; however, the most universally used measuring tool is the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI) Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR), which measures the number of crimes 
committed in particular categories. 

The number of crimes 
being committed in most 
of the measured 
categories has actually 
seen a decrease over the 
past couple of years 
despite the increase in 
population. 

Major Crimes by Decade 

1980-1989 1990-1999 2000-2009 2010-2017 

Population 110,869 144,508 233,740 256,327 

Murder 97 70 74 41 

Rape 218 319 274 149 

Robbery 421 467 348 158 

Burglary 11,019 9,416 7,339 3,756 

The population of St. 
Tammany Parish has 
more than doubled since 
the 1980s; yet when 
comparing the crimes 

reported in that decade to those reported from 2000-2009, there is a marked decrease in most of the 
major crimes. If you continue to look at the trend for the first seven years of the current decade, you 
will see overall crime is continuing to drop, despite upticks in some of reported areas. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office also has a very high solve rate, averaging more than 50 
percent of aU crimes being cleared on average every year. This is attributable to the work being done 
by the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office, an increase in technology available, and the cooperation 
and support of the residents who live here. 

The comparative 
numbers are slightly 
skewed when it comes 
to rape because 2015 
was the first full year 
of the new UCR 
standards for 
reporting of rape. The 
new standard includes 
all reports of sexual 
battery, carnal 
knowledge, incest and 
other sexual offenses. 
Previously, some 
types of those reported 
incidents were 
exempted from UCR 
reporting by the 
federal govemment. 

Major Crimes Reported by Calendar Year** 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017** 2018* 

Murder 7 0 4 3 4 17 4 

Rape 14 4 14 27 29 29 21 

Robbery 15 26 18 18 23 17 20 

Burglary 652 515 388 314 366 412 225 

Theft 1,755 1,413 1,119 1,305 1,264 1,264 899 

Auto 
Theft 

158 151 104 111 119 119 95 

*asof 10/31/18 
**The actual murder numbers for UCR reporting to the FBI for 2017 was 
12 due to the reporting process. The additional 5 appear in the 2018 UCR 
numbers. 

To address the growing drug problem in St. Tammany, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office has 
increased its presence of both patrol deputies and undercover narcotics detectives in neighborhoods 
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where the agency has seen an increase in criminal activity and has established a Highway Enforcement 
Unit, which patrols the interstates that pass through the parish, looking for individuals trafficking 
drugs and stolen vehicles. 

In 2017, the Sheriffs Office established a specially-trained Crisis Intervention Team and partnered 
with the local chapter of the National Alhance on Mental Illness to address the growing need for 
mental health services in our community, which is believed to be a contributing factor to the increase 
in number of domestic-related homicides. In 2017, nearly half of the homicides in unincorporated St. 
Tammany involved domestic violence. In 2018, the Sheriff signed a memorandum of understanding 
with all local law enforcement agencies, aimed at reducing domestic violence in St. Tammany Parish. 

St. Tammany's largest category of measured crimes committed is theft, with 1,264 thefts and 119 
vehicle thefts reported in calendar year 2017. As of Oct. 31, 2018, those numbers were 899 and 95 for 
the 2018 calendar year. These numbers include reported vehicle burglaries. 

The St. Tammany Sheriffs Office is continuing to work with the community to reduce these numbers, 
by educating residents through social media posts, videos, homeowners meetings, and community 
outreach events doors. 

Long-term Financial Planning & Major Initiatives 

Long-range financial plans serve as a tool to identify issues and opportunities, and to provide the 
Sheriff, staff, and citizens with the insights required to address issues impacting the Sheriffs Office 
financial condition. The Sheriffs plan typically includes a multi-year planning horizon - three to five 
years for projecting current operations and capital expenditures and extended time frames for more 
extensive projects depending on funding. Future additional projects will require additional revenue, 
either from current or new revenue sources, i.e., grants, bonded debt, etc. 

In fiscal year 2018, the Sheriffs Office joined governmental entities across the United States in 
adopting GASB No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Other Fost-Fmployment 
Benefits." Other Fost-Fmployment Benefits (OFFB) provided to the Sheriffs retired employees 
include medical, dental, and fife insurance. Under this new guidance, the Sheriffs Office has reported 
the total OFFB liability of $46.6 M in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. To ensure that 
these benefits can be paid as they come due. Sheriff Smith has assigned $1.1M of fund balance towards 
a long-term plan for funding this liability. 

Currently, multiple long-term projects are being evaluated and are in exploratory phase including: a 
new command center, new training facility with indoor firing range, body-wom cameras, an employee 
child care program and operational solutions for the loss of jail sales tax revenue. 

Since taking office, the Sheriff has continued the agency's dedicated focus on maintaining the safety 
of the people living and working in St. Tammany while making changes to improve the image of the 
agency and rebuild the community's trust. Some of his initiatives accomphshed this year include; 
developing a criminal intelligence unit to reduce violent crime, launching of school resource officer 
program in partnership with &e school board to maintain a safe learning environment for our children, 
equipping deputies with potentially lifesaving overdose drug to continue our focus on behavioral 
health and substance abuse issues, successfully awarded multiple grants to support community 
policing initiatives which help prevent crime and train deputies in crisis intervention, enhancing 
technologies including launching a crime reporting app designed to help keep citizens safe, and 
introducing of new employee recognition initiatives. 



The Sheriff strives to maintain an unrestricted fund balance to provide for unanticipated expenditures 
of a non-recurring nature and/or to meet unexpected increases in costs. All fund designations and 
reserves are reviewed annually for long-term adequacy and use requirements. Any projected 
insufficiencies will be addressed immediately. It is a goal to maintain a fund balance of at least 20% 
of the operating expenditures in the General Fund. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

The Sheriffs Office has established and adopted the following comprehensive financial policies to 
improve the Sheriffs Office financial stability, to balance the needs of the organization with the 
resources available for use, and to assist the Sheriffs Office with careful financial plarming. The 
policies set forth below are consistent guidelines for fiscal planning and performance, and support the 
Sheriffs Office commitment to sound financial management and financial stability. 

These policies can be found within the notes to the financial statements on pages 48 - 86. 

Acknowledgements 

For a fifth consecutive year. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. In order to receive this prestigious award, a government must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must 
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we will be submitting 
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation 
Award for its annual budget document the fourth time. To receive the Distinguished Budget 
Presentation Award, the government must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as 
a policy document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications device. 

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been possible without the skillful efforts 
of the Finance Department's Accounting staff as well as many additional members of St. Tammany 
Parish Sheriffs departments. We would like to express our sincere appreciation for their assistance in 
providing the data necessary to prepare this report and for their commitment to maintaining the 
highest standards of professionalism in the management of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Tiffany CSnisay 
Chief Financial Officer 
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LeBlanc Hausknecht, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Randy Smith 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriff (the Sheriff), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Sheriffs basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as weU as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

3421N. Causeway Blvd., Suite 701 • Metairie, LA 70002 • 504-837-0770 • 504-837-7102 (fax) • www.lh-cpa.net 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Sheriff, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the 
General Fund and the Jail Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphases of Matter 

As described in Note 10 to the financial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Sheriff 
adopted new accounting guidance, GASBS No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis (beginning on page 20), the schedule of changes in the total 
OPEB liability and related ratios (on page 87), the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension 
liability and the schedule of pension contributions (pages 88 and 89), be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Sheriffs basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining 
and individual non-major and fiduciary fund financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying ad valorem tax affidavit and the 
schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head, are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements of the Sheriff but is additional information required by the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor. 

The combining and individual non-major and fiduciary fund financial statements, the ad valorem tax 
affidavit, the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
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statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-
major and fiduciary fund financial statements, the ad valorem tax affidavit, and the schedule of 
compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 
2018, on our consideration of the Sheriffs internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Sheriffs internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Sheriffs internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairie, LA 
December 21, 2018 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office, we prepared this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities for fiscal year 2018 that ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers 
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-9 of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office were less than its liabilities at the close 
of the 2018 fiscal year by $7,525,407 (net position). 

• The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office's beginning net position was decreased to 
($15,365,273) due to a $23,653,915 prior period adjustment required by the implementation 
of GASB 75 Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) reporting requirements. However, due 
to current year reductions in expenditures by Sheriff Smith, there was an increase in net 
position of $7,839,866 during fiscal year 2018 and ending net position was increased by 51% 
over the amount at the beginning of the year. In addition, restated beginning unrestricted net 
position of ($38,979,256) was increased by $9,067,571 to ($29,911,685) at year end. 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office governmental 
funds reported combined fund balances of $35,211,174, an increase of $5,954,311 in 
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 63% of this amount, $22,342,775 is available 
for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance). In addition, the Sheriff 
has assigned $1,100,000 for the funding of the total OPEB liability. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed, 
assigned, and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $23,165,685 
or approximately 54.6% of total general fund expenditures. 

• The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office total outstanding long-term liabilities disclosed a net 
decrease of $9,420,957 during the current fiscal year due to a decrease in the net pension 
liability of $9,996,570, the addition to the total OPEB Liability of $1,923,684 and payments 
on bonds. See Notes 9-11 for a detailed explanation of the changes in long-term liabilities. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the St. Tammany 
Parish Sheriffs Office basic financial statements. The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office basic 
financial statements consist of three components: 

1) Government-wide financial statements 
2) Eund financial statements 
3) Notes to financial statements 

This report also includes supplementary information intended to fumish additional detail to support 
the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office finances, in a 
manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the Sheriffs Office assets, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. 
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

financial position of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office is improving or worsening. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as 
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the St. Tammany Parish 
Sheriffs Office that are principally supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other fonctions. The governmental activities of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs 
Office include public safety and interest on long-term debt. 

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 31-32 ofthis report. 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The St. Tammany Parish 
Sheriffs Office, like other state and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the St. Tammany 
Parish Sheriffs Office can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available 
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in assessing a government's near-term 
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and govemmental activities. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office maintains six individual governmental funds: General Fund, 
Jail Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Commissary Special Revenue Fund, Crime Lab 
Special Revenue Fund, and Bond Sinking Fund. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Jail Special Revenue Fund, and Capital Projects 
Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined 
into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules section of this report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund 
and Jail Special Revenue Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General 
Fund and Jail Special Revenue Fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements are on pages 33-41 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds. The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office maintains one proprietary fund, the 
Internal Service Fund. The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the payment of liability 
claims and related expenses. Resources to fund the self-insurance plan are recorded as revenues. The 
cost of claims is recorded as an expense in the Intemal Service Fund when claims arise. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are on pages 42-45 of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside of the government. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial 
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support Sheriff programs. The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like those used for proprietary funds. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office maintains five fiduciary funds. Each fund is outlined below. 

1. Sheriffs Fund Agencv Fund - accounts for funds in connection with civil suits, Sheriff sales 
and garnishments. It also accounts for the collections of bonds, probation fines and 
disbursement of these collections, in accordance with applicable law. 

2. Tax Collector Agencv Fund - Article V, Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, 
provides that the Sheriff will serve as collector of state, parish, and local taxes and fees. The 
Tax Collector Agency Fund accounts for the collection and distribution of these taxes and fees 
to the appropriate taxing bodies. Examples include, ad valorem taxes, redemption fees, sales 
& use taxes, occupational license renewals, and state revenue sharing. 

3. Jail Agencv Fund - accounts for individual prisoner account balances. Funds are deposited 
in the name of the prisoner and payable upon completion of their jail sentence. The Jail 
Agency Fund also accounts for the collection and disbursement of certain fees charged to 
inmates upon incarceration. 

4. Transitional Work Program Agencv Fund - accounted for individual prisoner account 
balances that were in the Transitional Work Program. Funds were deposited in the name of 
the prisoner and payable upon request. Balances in the individual prisoner accounts were 
returned upon completion of their jail sentence. Effective July 1, 2013, the Transitional Work 
Program was privatized and remained privatized until June 30, 2016. On July 1, 2016 the 
Transitional Work Program was again operated by the Sheriffs Office. It was in operation 
until June 15, 2017 when the Transitional Work Program was closed. All funds owed to 
participants in the program were transferred in June and July of 2017. 

5. Fines and Cost Agencv Fund - accounts for the collection and disbursement of fines and costs 
that are reviewed by the courts, in accordance with applicable law. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 46, 47, and 93-95 of this report. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire 
a full understanding of die data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the fmancial statements can be found on pages 48-86 of diis report. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic fmancial statements and accompanying notes, tfiis report 
also presents required supplementary information concerning the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios. Required supplementary information can be 
found on page 87 of tJiis report. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office has included the required supplemental information for the 
Sheriffs Office net pension liability and contributions to the Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund. The 
required supplementary information can be found on pages 88 and 89. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection witJi non-major governmental funds and 
agency funds are presented immediately following die required supplementary information starting 
on page 90. 

Government- Wide Overall Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government's fmancial 
position. In the case of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office, assets were less than liabilities by 
$7,525,407 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office Net Position 

Governmental activities 
2018 2017* 

Current Assets $ 40,469,347 $ 35,383,519 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 39,876,899 $ 40,278,835 

Total Assets $ 80,346,246 $ 75,662,354 
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 8,255,409 $ 15,251,491 
Current Liabilities $ 5,899,036 $ 7,281,038 
Long-Term Liabilities $ 85,888,845 $ 95,309,802 

Total Liabilities $ 91,787,881 $102,590,840 
Deferred Inflows of Resources-Pension $ 4,339,181 $ 3,688,278 
Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 21,256,899 $ 21,340,059 
Restricted for: 

Crime Lab Expenditures $ 1,026,462 $ 918,588 
Capital Projects Fund $ 2,150 $ 1,159,373 
Debt Service $ 12,908 $ 12,002 
General Fund-Equitable Sharing $ 87,859 $ 183,961 

Unrestricted $(29,911,685) $(38,979,256) 
Total Net Position $ (7,525,407) $(15,365,273) 

* Restated for adoption of GASB No. 75. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The largest portion of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office net position reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, vehicles, etc.), less any related outstanding debt that 
was used to acquire those assets. The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office uses these capital assets to 
provide a variety of services to its citizens. Accordingly, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office investment in capital assets is reported 
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt must be provided from 
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
Unrestricted net position was restated as of the beginning of the year with the implementation of 
GASB 75 that required the OPEB benefits for future years be shown on the Statement of Net Position 
as well as in the Notes to the Financial Statements. See note 10 for more information. 

An additional portion of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office net position represents resources 
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining deficit in unrestricted 
net position of $29,911,985, is substantially related to the net pension liability and the total Other Post-
Employment Benefit (OPEB) liability. See Notes 10 and 11 for further information. 

The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office overall net position increased $7,839,866 from the prior fiscal 
year. The reasons for this overall increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental 
activities. 

Governmental Activities. During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities 
increased $7,839,866 from the prior fiscal year as restated for an ending balance of ($7,525,407). The 
increase in the overall net position of governmental activities is primarily the result of a decrease in 
the net pension liability as well as by the Sheriffs decision to reduce certain expenditures in 
anticipation of possible revenue losses. See note 11 on pages 70-78 of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements for more details about the net pension liability decrease. 
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St. Tammany Parish SheiifiPs Office Changes in Net Position 

Govenunental Activities 
2018 2017 

Pro gram Revenues 
Charges and Services $ 18,487,824 $ 22,966,467 
Operating Grants and Contributions 9,110,092 6,188,325 
General Revenues 
Taxes 

Ad Valorem Taxes 23,125,527 21,894,548 
Sales and Use Taxes 12,017,191 11,925,645 

Intergovernmental Revenues 
Transfer from St. Tammanv Parish Council 8,950,465 11,925,644 

Interest and Investment Eamings 222,271 60,759 
Other Revenues 1,237,214 1,083,018 
Total Revenues 73,150,584 76,044,406 

Expenses 
Public Safetv 64,676,529 70,682,777 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 634,189 662,339 
Total Expenses 65,310,718 71,345,116 
Change in Net Position 7,839,866 4,699,290 
Net Position, Beginning of Year, as previouslv stated 8,288,642 3,589,352 
Prior Period Adfustment - Implementation of GASB 75 

Other Post-Emplovment Benefits Liabilitv (23,653,915) -

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as restated (15,365,273) 3,589,352 
Net Position, End of Year $ (7,525,407) $ 8,288,642 

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds 

As noted earlier, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office financing requirements. In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources 
available for discretionary use as they represent the portion of fund balance that has not yet been 
limited to use for a particular purpose by either an extemal party or the Sheriff himself. 

On June 30, 2018, The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office governmental funds reported combined 
fund balances of $35,211,174; an increase of $5,954,311 in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 63% of this amount, $22,342,775, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is 
available for spending at the govemmenf s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either 
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nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is: 
1) Amount not in spendable form. Prepaid Items, is $238,128 
2) Amount restricted for particular purposes is $1,129,379 
3) Amount committed for particular purposes is $6,487,789 
4) Amount assigned for particular purposes is $5,013,103 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office. At the end of 
the fiscal year 2018, the unassigned fund balance in the general fund was $22,342,775. The total fund 
balance increased to $23,471,259. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. 
Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 52.7 percent of total general fund expenditures. 
The total fund balance represents approximately 55.3 percent of that same amount. 

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office general 
fund increased by $6,804,115. To remain fiscally responsible, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
reduced certain expenditures in the General Fund in anticipation of possible revenue loss. 

During fiscal year 2018, the fund balance of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office Jail Special 
Revenue Fund decreased by $23,236. For fiscal year 2018, no transfers were made from the General 
Fund to the Jail Fund. 

The Capital Projects Fund, a major fund, had a $1,122,892 decrease in fund balance during the fiscal 
year 2018 which put the overall flind balance at $5,567,244. The decrease in fund balance was a direct 
result of the continued expenditures on the new radio system; for which the Series 2014 certificates of 
indebtedness were issued. See Note 9 for further information. 

Proprietary Funds. The Sheriff maintains one proprietary fund; the Internal Service Fund. The 
Internal Service Fund is used to account for the payment of liability claims and related expenses. 
Resources to fund the self-insurance plan are recorded as revenues. The cost of claims is recorded as 
an expense in the Internal Service Fund when the claims arise. 

Unrestricted net position of the Intemal Service Fund at the end of fiscal year 2018 was $2,642,248. 
The increase in net position of the Internal Service Fund was $15,525. The increase in net position is 
the result of bank interest received. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The current year's revenues and expenditures warranted amendments to the original estimates based 
on the mid-year trends and more up to date short-term forecasting. 

The most significant differences between estimated revenues and actual revenues were as follows: 

Revenue Source Original Budget Final Actual Difference 
Amended Revenues Final Budget 
Budget to Actual 

Ad Valorem Tax $22,730,000 $22,917,650 $23,125,527 $207,877 
Sales and Use Tax 11,900,000 11,840,000 12,017,191 177,191 
Civil Fees 2,200,000 2,550,000 2,796,003 246,003 
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St. Tammany Parish continued to experience slight growth in residential and commercial 
development and valuation. There were changes to the original tax roll, which increased actual 
collections throughout the year. The uncollectible Ad Valorem taxes at year-end were lower than 
expected due to additional and earlier mail out of notices for the delinquent accounts, resulting in a 
slight favorable variance of 0.9%. 

There was uncertainty in the economic outlook, thus we have proceeded with caution toward the sales 
tax revenue outlook. Sales and Use taxes have not shown a steady growth trend in the fiscal year 
2018, with many months recording lower revenue than the year before. We have adjusted down the 
budget based on the collections at the beginning of the year. Since the Sales and Use tax collections 
are strictly dependent on consumer spending, we choose to budget conservatively. We are in the midst 
of the third longest economic expansion in our nation's history and the exact time of an economic 
slowdown is unpredictable. This fiscal year performance exceeded our expectations with a favorable 
variance of 1.50%. 

Civil fees are dictated by the court systems and decisions made by the assigned judges. The Civil 
Department collects fees for serving legal papers and commission for foreclosure sales and 
garnishments (3% on real estate and 6% on movables). Last March, the legislature changed the service 
fee from $20 plus mileage to $30 plus mileage. Also, in May of 2018, the Civil Department started 
requiring that attorneys pre-pay for services. This has helped tremendously with our collection efforts 
and it ensures that we are actually paid for the services we perform, resulting in a favorable variance 
of9.6%. 

Expenditures Original Budget Final Amended Actual Expenses Difference Final 
Budget Budget to Actual 

Personnel Services $24,432,098 $23,779,125 $23,317,444 ($461,681) 
Payroll Benefits 9,033,052 9,329,309 9,158,369 (170,940) 
Operating Expenditures 4,229,223 4,138,501 3,721,073 (417,428) 
Professional Fees 2,193,640 1,704,441 1,536,072 (168,369) 

Personnel Services and Payroll Benefits experienced a favorable variance due to multiple approved 
and funded positions that were not filled throughout the year. An unfilled vacancy is a full-time 
position that is identified as unoccupied at some point during the budget year. Funding unfilled 
vacancies provides for maximum hiring flexibility. We review and revise our budget mid-year to 
account for realized vacancies. 

Operating expenditures incurred a favorable variance as well. We always strive to save tax dollars 
whenever beneficial and feasible. In addition, a significant part of the variance was the result of the 
Crime Lab Special Revenue Fund covering the utilities and the insurance for the Crime Lab building 
beginning in fiscal year 2018. 

A favorable variance was noted in Professional Fees. A majority of the savings came from lower than 
anticipated maintenance contract costs. 

Capital A^ets and Debt Administration 

Capital A^ets. The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office investment in capital assets for its 
governmental activities as of June 30, 2018 amounts to $39,876,899 (net of accumulated depreciation). 
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This investment in capital assets includes construction in progress, land, leasehold improvements, 
buildings, other equipment, communication equipment, and vehicles. The total decrease in capital 
assets for the current fiscal year was approximately $400,000 or 1%. 

St. Tammany Parish Sheriff's Office Capital A^ets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Govemmental Activities 
2018 2017 

Construction in Progress $ $14,443,776 
Land 2,878,144 2,878,144 
Leasehold Improvements 166,974 172,866 
Buildings 16,098,265 16,802,811 
Other Equipment 2,619,320 2,893,242 
Communication Equipment 15,523,162 83,882 
Vehicles 2,591,034 3,004,114 
Totals $39,876,899 $40,278,835 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
• Completed construction in process, radio system with $1,118,248 of costs incurred in fiscal 

year 2018. Radio system was placed into service at a value of $15,562,024. 
• Vehicle replacements were purchased at a cost of $1,197,610. 
• Miscellaneous equipment and building improvements were made at a cost of $750,271. 

Additional information on the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office capital assets can be found in Note 
7 on page 64 of this report. 

Long-term Debt 

On August 1, 2011, the Sheriff issued Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, in the amount of 
$8,000,000, secured by excess revenue of the Sheriff. The bonds were issued for the purpose of 
building a new crime lab facility in Slidell, Louisiana, to include making capital improvements, 
comprising the acquisition of furnishings and equipment and paying the costs of issuance thereof. 
Standard & Poor's Public Financing Ratings, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. has 
assigned the Series 2011 Bonds a municipal debt rating of "AA" (stable). S&P defines a "AA" rating 
as having a very strong capacity to meet financial commitments. Additionally, the Bond Sinking Fund 
accounts for all scheduled bond payments issued related to the Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 
2011. These funds are transferred from the General Fund to the Bond Sinking Fund prior to issuing 
payment. 

On March 20, 2014, the Sheriff issued Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, in the amount of 
$15,400,000, secured by excess revenue of the Sheriff. A bond premium was included at disbursement 
in the value of $346,072. The bonds were issued for the purpose of acquiring a radio system andpaying 
the costs incurred in connection with the issuance thereof. Standard & Poor's Public Financing 
Ratings, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. has assigned the Series 2014 Bonds a 
municipal debt rating of "AA" (stable). S&P defines a "AA" rating as having a very strong capacity 
to meet financial commitments. Additionally, the Bond Sinking Fund accounts for all scheduled bond 
payments issued related to the Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. These funds will be 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

transferred from the General Fund to the Bond Sinking Fund prior to issuing payment. At the end of 
fiscal year 2018, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$18,873,788. The Bond premium is included with the General Obligation Bonds in the current year 
statements. 

St. Tammany Parish SheiifiPs Office Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Activities 
2018 2017* 

General Obligation Bonds $18,873,788 $20,171,859 
Net Pension Liabilitv 21,684,915 31,681,485 
Total OPEB Liabilitv 46,678,213 44,754,529 
Totals $87,236,916 $96,607,873 

^Restated for adoption of GASB 75. 

In fiscal year 2018, the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office total debt decreased by $9,370,957 or 
9.7%. This was primarily the result of the decrease in the pension liability of $9,996,570. For more 
detail on the total OFFB Liability and the net pension liability, see notes 10 and 11. 

Additional information on the St. Tammany Parish's Sheriffs Office long-term debt can be found in 
Note 9 on pages 65-66 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

The following economic factors impact the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office and were considered 
in developing the 2018-2019 fiscal year budget. 

• The unemployment rate for St. Tammany Parish at fiscal year 2018 year-end (June 2018) was 
at 4.3 percent which is slightly lower than the rate at the beginning of the year of 5.0 percent. 

• Sales tax has continued to experience an increase as a result of the completion of the Fremaux 
Town Center. Although this commercial facility opened in March of 2014, this complex 
continues to expand and will continue to provide future revenue as the Sheriff will receive a 
portion of the sales tax revenue collected. 

• The Sheriff is mandated to provide health insurance to full-time employees. Employee health 
insurance premiums will reflect a decrease of 12.5 percent in fiscal year 2019 beginning 
November 2018. Employer pension rates will decrease to 12.25 percent in fiscal year 2019 
from 12.75 percent in fiscal year 2018. 

• The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office continues to purchase an excess liability insurance 
policy to protect itself from unforeseen losses in excess of $ 1 million in primary insurance. The 
Sheriff is responsible for funding any losses before this policy goes into effect and after its limits 
are exceeded. 

29 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

• The Sheriffs office received a grant for hiring police officers for a period of three years from 
the COPS, Community Oriented Policing Services, U. S. Department of Justice in the amount 
of $1,009,795. The initial award date of this grant was November 13, 2017. 

• We anticipate a continual increase in the population of St. Tammany Parish residents. With 
any increase, aggregate revenues and expenditures will be reflective. 

• Departmental budgeted expenditure reductions will be implemented in recognition of any 
decline in revenues. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs 
Office finances for all those with an interest in the Sheriffs finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Deputy Chief of Administration Tiffany Carrasco, 300 Brownswitch Road, Slidell, 
Louisiana, 70458. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

Go vemmental 
Activities 

Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Other Assets 
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

32,924,732 
663,869 

6,640,618 
238,128 

2,000 
2,878,144 

36,998,755 

Total Assets 80,346,246 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Outflows - Pension 
Deferred Outflows - Postemployment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

7,878,295 
377,114 

Total Deferred Otitflows of Resources 8,255,409 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 
Accrued Liabilities - Bond Interest 
Compensated Absences 
Long-T erm Liabilities 
Certificates of Indebtedness Payable 

Current Portion 
Noncurrent Portion 

Net Pension Liability 
Total Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability 

1,422,919 
1,193,006 

204,985 
1,730,055 

1,348,071 
17,525,717 
21,684,915 
46,678,213 

T otal Liabilities 91,787,881 

Deferred Inflows of Resources-Pension 4,339,181 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resotirces 4,339,181 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Crime Lab 
Capital Projects Fund 
Debt Service 
General Fund-Equitable Sharing 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

21,256,899 

1,026,462 
2,150 
12,908 
87,859 

(29,911,685) 

$ (7,525,407) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Actitities 

Govemmental Actitities 
Public Safety 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

Total Govemniental 
Activities 

Pro gram Revenues 

Expenses 

Operating 
Charges Grants and 

for Sertices Contribtitions 

$ 64,676,529 
634,189 

$ 18,487,824 $ 9,110,092 

General Revenues 
Taxes 

Ad Valorem T^es 
Sales and Use Taxes 

Inteigovemmental Revenues 
Transfer from St. Tammany Parish Council 

Interest and Investment Eamings 
Other Revenues 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as previotisly stated 

Prior Period Adjustment - Irt^lementation of GASB 75 
Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability 

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as restated 

Net (Expense) 
Reventie and 
Changes in 

Net Position 
Govemmental 

Activities 

$ (37,078,613) 
(634,189) 

$ 65,310,718 $ 18,487,824 $ 9,110,092 (37,712,802) 

23,125,527 
12,017,191 

8,950,465 
222,271 

1,237,214 

45,552, 

7,839,866 

8,288,642 

(23,653,915) 

(15,365,273) 

Net Position, End of Year $ (7,525,407) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Major Fund Descriptions 
Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2018 

General Fund 
The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with governments that are not 
required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund serves as the Sheriffs primary 
operating fund. The two major forms of revenue for the fund include Ad Valorem Taxes and Sales 
and Use Taxes, while the two major forms of expenditures include Personnel Services and Payroll 
Benefits. From time to time, the General Fund may also record transfers out to the Jail Special 
Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and the Bond Sinking Fund. 

Jail Special Revenue Fund 
The Jail Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operations of the St. Tammany Parish Jail (the 
Jail). Revenues include a transfer from St. Tammany Parish (Parish) related to the proceeds of a 
dedicated V4 cent Sales and Use tax (Jail Sales Tax) effective on April 1, 1998, for the expansion of the 
existing jail and to fund ongoing operations of the jail. Expenditures include the transfer of funds to 
the Parish for the repayment of a bond issue related to construction, maintenance, and ongoing 
operations of the jail. The Jail Sales Tax expired March 31, 2018, accordingly, the Sheriff 
discontinued the transfers to the Parish for the repayment of the bond issue. Revenues also include 
reimbursements from the Department of Corrections for the keeping of prisoners, and other grants 
and revenues including a contract with the Parish from April 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 to provide 
payment for parish prisoners incarcerated in the Jail. 

Capital Projects Fund 
The Sheriff maintains the Capital Projects Fund to account for the construction of new facilities and 
radio system infrastructure upgrades in St. Tammany Parish. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2018 

Jail Total 
Special Capital Nonmajor Total 

General Revenue Projects Governmental Go vemmental 
Ftind Ftind Fund Fimds Fimds 

Assets 
Cash $ 20,663,024 $ 2,027,716 $ 5,589,744 $ 1,953,345 30,233,829 
Investments 663,869 - - - 663,869 
Receivables 3,950,836 2,612,031 - 77,751 6,640,618 
Prepaid Items 217,715 20,413 - - 238,128 
Other Assets 2,000 - 2,000 

Total Assets $ 25,497,444 $ 4,660,160 $ 5,589,744 $ 2,031,096 $ 37,778,444 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable $ 1,111,684 $ 175,234 $ 22,500 $ 64,846 $ 1,374,264 
Accrued Liabilities 914,501 274,320 - 4,185 1,193,006 

Total Liabilities $ 2,026,185 449,554 22,500 69,031 2,567,270 

Fxind Balances 
Nonspendable 
Restricted, reported in: 

Capital Projects Fund-Radio System 2014 
Special Revenue Funds-Crime Lab Equipment and Maintenance 
Bond Sinking Fund-Bond Payments Series 2011 and Series 2014 
General Fund-Equitable Sharing 

Committed, reported in: 
Capital Projects Fund-General Capital Projects 
Special Revenue Funds-Equipment and Maintenance 

Assigned, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds-Jail Fund Expenses 
Post Employment Benefits 

Unassigned 

T otal Ftind Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial 

217,715 $ 20,413 $ 

2,150 

87,859 

5,565,094 

1,026,462 
12,908 

922,695 

822,910 
22,342,775 

3,913,103 
277,090 

$ 238,128 

2,150 
1,026,462 

12,908 
87,859 

5,565,094 
922,695 

3,913,103 
1,100,000 

22,342,775 

$ 23,471,259 

$ 25,497,444 

4,210,606 

4,660,160 

5,567,244 

5,589,744 

1,962,065 

2,031,096 

35,211,174 

37,778,444 

statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Reconciliadon of the Balance Sheet -
Governmental Funds to Government-wide Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

Amounts reported for Govemmental Activities in the Statement of Net 
Position are different because: 

Total Fund Balances $ 35,211,174 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 39,876,899 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,255,409 
Internal service funds are used by management to charge liability 

claims and related expenses to individual funds and are included in 
govemmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 2,642,248 

Compensated Absences (1,730,055) 
Accrued Liabilities - Bond Interest (204,985) 
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 
Certificates of Indebtedness (18,873,788) 
Net Pension Liability (21,684,915) 
Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation (46,678,213) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources (4,339,181) 

Net Position of Govemmental Activities $ (7,525,407) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Jail Total 
Special Capital Non-Major Total 

General Revenue Projects Governmental Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

R.evenixes 
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 23,125,527 $ $ $ $ 23,125,527 
Sales and Use Taxes 12,017,191 12,017,191 
Inteigovemmental Revenues 

Transfer from St. Tammany Parish Council 8,950,465 8,950,465 
Federal Grants 540,087 540,087 
State Revenue Sharing 468,761 468,761 
State Supplemental Pay 2,033,233 384,491 461 2,418,185 
DOC Program Reimbursement 428,261 428,261 
Other Inteigovemmental Revenues 1,511,073 1,755,890 3,266,963 

Fees, Charges and Commissions for Services 
Commissions 

Sales and Use Taxes 2,694,408 2,694,408 
Other 735,897 663,270 361,218 1,760,385 

Civil Fees 2,796,003 2,796,003 
Criminal Fees 828,746 337,754 1,166,500 
Keeping of Prisoners 3,719 6,909,416 6,913,135 
Tax Research and Other Services 603,198 603,198 
Salary Reimbursements 2,490,447 63,748 2,554,195 

Interest Earnings 136,547 17,503 39,962 12,734 206,746 
Other Revenues 1,146,951 98,662 1,245,613 

T otal Revenues 51,131,788 19,271,706 39,962 712,167 71,155,623 

Expenditures 
Public Safety 

Personnel Services $ 23,317,444 $ 8,167,358 $ $ 65,066 $ 31,549,868 
Payroll Benefits 9,158,369 2,626,461 22,578 11,807,408 
Operating Expenditures 3,721,073 3,016,039 168,663 6,905,775 
Professional Fees 1,536,072 3,421,640 44,607 11,079 5,013,398 
Materials and Supplies 1,114,082 351,231 66,241 1,531,554 
Travel and Education 173,958 35,797 209,755 
Insurance 1,578,501 159,626 40,237 1,778,364 

Inteigovemmental 
Transfer to St. Tammany Parish Council 1,420,255 1,420,255 

Debt Service 
Principal 1,275,000 1,275,000 

Interest 643,806 643,806 
Capital Outlays 1,809,368 96,535 1,118,247 41,979 3,066,129 

T otal Expenditures 42,408,867 19,294,942 1,162,854 2,334,649 65,201,312 

Excess (Deficiencj^ of Revenues 
Over Expenditures $ 8,722,921 $ (23,236) $ (1,122,892) $ (1,622,482) $ 5,954,311 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

36 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

General 
Fund 

Jan 
Special 

Revenue 
Fund 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

$ 
(1,918,806) 

$ 1,918,806 1,918,806 
(1,918,806) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,918,806) 1,918,806 

Net Change in Fund Balances 6,804,115 (23,236) (1,122,892) 296,324 5,954,311 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 16,667,144 4,233,842 6,690,136 1,665,741 29,256,863 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 23,471,259 $ 4,210,606 $ 5,567,244 $ 1,962,065 $ 35,211,174 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Reconciliadon of the Statement of Re venues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to 
the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 5,954,311 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 
This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays. (393,537) 

Gains/losses on the disposal of capital assets reported in the Statement of 
Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (8,399) 

Governmental funds report employer contributions to its pension plan as 
expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, pension expense 
represents the Sheriffs proportionate share of the Sheriffs' Pension 
and Relief Fund's change in net pension liability. (15,364) 

Revenue reported in the Statement of Activities for the Sheriffs proportionate 
share of non-employer contributions to the pension plan does not provide 
current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as revenue in the 
governmental funds. 1,987,835 

Governmental funds report payments of post-employment benefits for 
retirees as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, 
OPEB expense is based on the change in total OPEB liability, 
adjusted for current-period amortization of deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources. (1,546,570) 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., certificates of indebtedness) 
provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental 
funds. Neither transaction, however has any effect on net position. 
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment 
of long-term debt and related items. 1,298,071 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Reconciliadon of the Statement of Re venues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to 
the Government-Wide Statement of Activities (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Change in accrued interest on long-term debt does not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore is not reported as an expenditure 
in governmental funds. 9,617 

The change in compensated absences reported in the Statement of 
Activities does not require the use of current financial resources and, 
therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds. 538,377 

Intemal service funds are used to charge the costs of liability insurance 
to individual funds. This amount is the total change in net position in 
the intemal service fund. 15,525 

Change in Net Position 7,839,866 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
General Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Budget Variance with 

Origined Final Actual Final Budget 

Reraiues 

Ad Valorem Taxes $ 22,730,000 $ 22,917,650 $ 23,125,527 $ 207,877 

Sales and Use Taxes 11,900,000 11,840,000 12,017,191 177,191 

Intergovernmental Revenues 

Federal Grants 274,364 524,094 540,087 15,993 

State Revenue Sharing 430,000 430,000 468,761 38,761 

State Supplemental Pay 2,097,493 1,967,687 2,033,233 65,546 

Other Intergovernmental Revenues 1,051,756 1,424,681 1,511,073 86,392 

Fees, Charges and Commissions for Services 

Commissions 

Sales and Use Taxes 2,500,000 2,670,000 2,694,408 24,408 

Other 707,000 727,000 735,897 8,897 

Civil Fees 2,200,000 2,550,000 2,796,003 246,003 

Criminal Fees 767,600 785,765 828,746 42,981 

Keeping of Prisoners 3,719 3,719 

Tax Research and Other Services 548,500 513,500 603,198 89,698 

Salary Reimbursements 2,581,387 2,579,346 2,490,447 (88,899) 

Interest Earnings 32,500 121,500 136,547 15,047 

Other Revenues 787,500 1,078,255 1,146,951 68,696 

Totiil Reraiues 48,608,100 50,133,197 51,131,788 998,591 

Expaiditures 

Public Safety 

Personnel Services 24,432,098 23,779,125 23,317,444 461,681 

Payroll Benefits 9,033,052 9,329,309 9,158,369 170,940 

Operating Expenditures 4,229,223 4,138,501 3,721,073 417,428 

Professional Eees 2,193,640 1,704,441 1,536,072 168,369 

Materials and Supplies 623,377 1,200,685 1,114,082 86,603 

Travel and Education 187,094 219,011 173,958 45,053 

Insurance 2,297,815 1,661,447 1,578,501 82,946 

Capital Outlays 49,125 1,830,530 1,809,368 21,162 

T ot £il Exp aiditures 43,045,424 43,863,049 42,408,867 1,454,182 

Excess (Defidaicy) ofReraiuesOvo' 

Exp aiditures 5,562,676 6,270,148 8,722,921 2,452,773 

Otha Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers In 

Transfers Out (1,918,806) (1,918,806) (1,918,806) 

T otid Otha Financing Sources (Uses) (1,918,806) (1,918,806) (1,918,806) 

Net Changes in Fund B alance $ 3,643,870 $ 4,351,342 6,804,115 $ 2,452,773 

Fund B idance, B eg inning of Year 16,667,144 

Fund B alance, End of Year $ 23,471,259 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Jail Special Revenue Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Budget VariMicewith 
Origind Find Actud Find Budget 

Revenues 

Intergovernmental Revenues 

Transfer from St. Tammany Parish Council $ 8,865,000 $ 10,645,530 $ 8,950,465 $ (1,695,065) 

state Supplemental Pay 403,984 411,740 384,491 (27,249) 

DOC Program Reimbursement 436,328 523,070 428,261 (94,809) 

other Intergovernmental Revenues 1,755,890 1,755,890 

Fees, Charges and Commissions for Services 

other Commissions 647,000 605,200 663,270 58,070 

Keeping of Prisoners 6,412,400 6,739,600 6,909,416 169,816 

Salary Reimbursements 82,000 77,000 63,748 (13,252) 

Interest Earnings 12,500 17,503 5,003 

other Revenues 44,500 99,000 98,662 (338) 

Totd Revenues 16,891,212 19,113,640 19,271,706 158,066 

Exp aiditures 

Public Safety 

Personnel Services 9,519,207 8,160,130 8,167,358 (7,228) 

Payroll Benefits 3,258,240 2,655,574 2,626,461 29,113 

operating Expenditures 3,261,611 3,192,425 3,016,039 176,386 

Professional Fees 724,032 3,436,562 3,421,640 14,922 

Materials and Supplies 528,456 443,193 351,231 91,962 

Travel and Education 75,658 44,368 35,797 8,571 

Insurance 500,000 211,601 159,626 51,975 

Intergovernmental 

Transfer to St. Tammany Parish Council 1,420,255 1,420,255 1,420,255 

Capital Outlays 96,535 96,535 

Totd Exp aiditures 19,287,459 19,660,643 19,294,942 365,701 

Deficiency of Revalues Over 
Expenditures (2,396,247) (547,003) (23,236) 523,767 

Nrt ChMiges in Eund B dwoe $ (2,396,247) $ (547,003) (23,236) $ 523,767 

Fund Bdwoe, Beginning of Year 

Fund Bdwoe, End of Year 

4,233,842 

4,210,606 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Fund Description 
Proprietary Fund 
June 30, 2018 

Internal Service Fund (Risk Management) 

The Sheriffs proprietary fund accounts for the payment of liability claims and related expenses. 
Resources to fund the self-insurance plan are recorded as revenues. The cost of claims is recorded as 
an expense in the Internal Service Fund when the claims arise. Accrued liabilities include provisions 
for claims reported but not paid as of the fiscal year end. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
June 30, 2018 

Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,690,903 

T otal Current Assets 2,690,903 

Current Liabilities 
Claims Payable 48,655 

Total Current Liabilities 48,655 

Net Position 
Unrestricted $ 2,642,248 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Operating Revenues 
Fund Premiums 

T otal Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Claims and Legal Fees 

T otal Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Interest Famed 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 

Net Position, End of Year 

1,056,951 

1,056,951 

1,056,951 

1,056,951 

15,525 

15,525 

2,626,723 

$ 2,642,248 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Fund Premiums $ 1,056,951 
Claims and Legal Fees (1,103,543) 

Net Cash Used For hy Operating Activities (46,592) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest Famed 15,525 

Net Cash Provided hy Operating Activities 15,525 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (31,067) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 2,721,970 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year ^^^^690^903^ 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Used for Operating Activities 

Operating Income $ 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities: 
Change in Claims Payable (46,592) 

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities $ (46,592) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Fund Description 
Fiduciary Fund 
June 30, 2018 

Fiduciary Fund 

As the Ex-OfFicio Tax Collector of the Parish of St. Tammany, the Sheriff is responsible for collecting 
and disbursing ad valorem (property) taxes, parish occupational licenses, state revenue sharing funds, 
fines and costs, and bond forfeitures imposed by the district court. The Sheriff is also contracted to be 
the sole tax collector for the collection and distribution of sales and use taxes throughout the Parish. 
The Sheriffs Fiduciary Fund accounts for the collection and distribution of these funds. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position 
Fiduciary Fund 
June 30, 2018 

Agency 
Funds 

Assets 
Cash and Interest-Bearing Deposits $ 26,538,758 

T otal Assets J_^6i538^7^ 

Liabilities 
Due to Taxing Bodies, Prisoners and Others $ 26,538,758 

Total Liabilities $ 26,538,758 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

47 



HMV^MlH BiHW^^H BflV^^HB BMV^MlHi BflV^^HB 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE TEAR ENBEB JUNE JO, 2018 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



***This Page Intentionally Blank*** 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

As provided by Article V, Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, the 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff serves a four-year term as the Chief Executive Officer of the Law 
Enforcement District and Ex-Officio Tax Collector of St. Tammany Parish. The Sheriff 
administers the Parish jail operations and exercises duties required by the parish court system, 
such as providing bailiffs, executing orders of the court, serving subpoenas, et cetera. 

As the chief law enforcement officer of the Parish, the Sheriff has the responsibility for 
enforcing state and local laws and ordinances within the territorial boundaries of the parish. 
The Sheriff provides protection to the residents of the parish through patrols, investigations 
and other law enforcement activities. In addition, the Sheriff, when requested, provides 
assistance to other law enforcement agencies within the parish, state or federal government. 

As the Ex-Officio Tax Collector of the parish, the Sheriff is responsible for collecting and 
disbursing ad valorem taxes, parish occupational licenses, state revenue sharing funds, fines 
and costs, and bond forfeitures imposed by the district court. The Sheriff is also contracted to 
be the sole tax collector for the collection and distribution of sales and use taxes throughout 
the parish. 

Reporting Entity 
Eor financial reporting purposes, the Sheriffs basic financial statements include all funds that 
are controlled by the Sheriff as an independently elected parish official. As an independently 
elected official, the Sheriff is solely responsible for the operations of his office. Other than 
certain operating expenditures of the Sheriff that are paid or provided by the St. Tammany 
Parish Council (the Parish Council) as required by Louisiana law, the Sheriff is financially 
independent. Accordingly, the Sheriff is a primary government for reporting purposes. 

The criteria for including organizations as component units within the Sheriffs reporting 
entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standards, include items such as whether the organization is legally 
separate, whether the Sheriff appoints a voting majority of the organization's board, whether 
the Sheriff is able to impose his will on the organization, et cetera. 

Based on these criteria, the Sheriff has no component units. 

Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying basic financial statements of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriff have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard 
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are 
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from govemmental funds 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Basis of Presentalion (Continued) 
and the Internal Service Fund. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental 
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Sheriff. 
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 
1) Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, 

services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 
2) Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 

requirements of a particular function or segment. 
Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide information about the Sheriffs funds, including its 
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major govemmental 
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated 
and reported as non-major funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as 
separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

The Sheriff reports the following major governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Sheriff. It accounts for all the 
financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in other funds. 

• The Jail Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operations of the St. Tammany Parish 
Jail. Revenues included the proceeds of a Jail Sales Tax effective April 1, 1998 dedicated 
for the expansion of the existing jail and to fund ongoing operations of the jail. This Jail 
Sales Tax expired in March 2018. The Parish has entered into a contract with the Sheriff 
from April 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 to provide payment for parish prisoners 
incarcerated in the Jail. The fund transferred money to the Parish for repayment of a bond 
issue related to construction, maintenance, and ongoing operations of the jail through 
March 2018, the expiration of the Jail Sales Tax transferred to the jail for operation. 
Revenues also include reimbursements from the Louisiana Department of Corrections for 
the keeping of prisoners, and other grants and revenues. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
• The Capital Projects Fund accounts for any long-term construction of new facilities and 

major upgrades in St. Tammany Parish. 

Additionally, the Sheriff reports the following fund types: 

• The Internal Service Fund is a proprietary fund used to account for the payment of liability 
claims and related expenses. Resources to fund the self-insurance plan are recorded as 
revenues. The cost of claims is recorded as an expense in the Internal Service Fund when 
the claims arise. Accrued liabilities include provisions for claims reported but not yet paid 
as of the fiscal year end. The self-insured retention policy has a $2,625,000 aggregate 
retention. 

• The Fiduciary Fund is used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others 
and, therefore, cannot be used to support the Sheriffs programs. The only funds 
accounted for in this category by the Sheriff are agency funds. The agency funds account 
for assets held by the Sheriff as an agent for various taxing bodies (tax collections) and for 
deposits held pending court action. These funds are custodial in nature (assets equal 
liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

During the course of operations, the Sheriff has activity between funds for various purposes. 
Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due to/from other fonds and 
advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, 
certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. 
Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and 
internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal 
balances in the governmental activities column. 

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. 
In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. 
While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation 
of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in 
governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in 
the governmental activities column. 

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable 
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of 
resources being measured such as curretit financial resources or economic resources. The basis of 
accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial 
statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Ad valorem taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Modified accrual accounting 
recognizes revenues when they become measurable and available. Measurable means that the 
dollar value of the revenue is known. Available means that it is collectible within the current 
period or soon enough after the end of the current period to pay liabilities of the current period. 
The Sheriff considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the fiscal 
year end. Expenditures are recorded generally when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for interest and principal payment on general long-term debt, which are recognized 
when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized 
when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources. 

Ad valorem taxes, sales and use taxes, occupational licenses, and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized 
as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue 
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements 
have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period 
for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered to 
be measureable and available only when cash is received by the Sheriff. 

The proprietary fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of 
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities. 

Annual Budget 
The proposed 2017-2018 budgets for the General Eund and the Jail Special Revenue Eund 
were made available for public inspection at the Sheriffs office on June 1, 2017. A public 
hearing was held at the Sheriffs office for suggestions and comments from the general public 
on Monday, June 12, 2017. The budget, which includes proposed expenditures and the means 
of financing them, was published in the official journal prior to the public hearing. The Sheriff 
legally adopted the proposed budget on the date of the public hearing. The budget was 
amended on Tuesday, June 12, 2018 and was subsequently published in the official joumal. 
All appropriations lapsed at year-end. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Budgetary Basis of Accounting 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles for the General Fund and the Jail Special Revenue Fund with three exceptions: sales 
and use taxes and commissions associated with the collection are recognized as revenue in the 
month they are collected by the Sheriff, not in the month collected by the vendor; expenditures 
represented by unpaid invoices after the year-end cut-off and which were not encumbered are 
recognized when paid; and amounts paid under capital leases are budgeted as expenditures. 

Other funds do not have appropriated budgets since other means control the use of these 
resources. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. Managers are 
allowed to transfer funds within their department's discretionary spending line items as long 
as the bottom line is not affected. Transfers of appropriations between departments require the 
approval of the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Deputy, or the Sheriff, as required. The legal 
level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations) is the department level. 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Cash and Investments 
Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits. Under state 
law, the Sheriff may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or 
time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United 
States, or under the laws of the United States. Deposits must be made in a bank domiciled or 
having branch offices in the parish where the funds are collected. 

Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statute. If the original maturities of investments 
exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original maturities are 90 
days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. At June 30, 2018, the Sheriffs investments 
consisted of U.S. government agency bonds, which are reported at fair value based on 
published market prices. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash and Investments (Continued) 
The Sheriff will have the following objectives with regard to Investments: 
• Safety of invested funds; 
• Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet cash flow needs; 
• Attainment of the maximum yield possible consistent with the first two objectives. 

Prepaid Items 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated cost if historical cost is not 
available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their acquisition value at the date of 
donation. The Sheriff maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing assets. 

Capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds, and are recorded as 
assets in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. All capital assets, other than land 
and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Estimated 
Asset Class Useful Lives 
Other Equipment 3 - 5 Years 
Vehicles 3 - 5 Years 
Communication Equipment 10 Years 
Leasehold Improvements 5 - 30 Years 
Buildings 30 Years 

Compensated Absences 
Employees of the Sheriff earn from 128 to 208 hours of annual leave depending on the length 
of their service. Annual leave is accrued each pay period. Annual leave cannot exceed the 
employees' maximum earned annually plus 40 hours at any time. If this occurs, the employee 
accrues no additional annual leave until the balance is below the annual threshold plus 40. All 
vacation leave earned at June 30, 2018 will be used in the following year. It cannot be 
accumulated. The following is a summary of the compensated absences liability for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018. 

Balance Balance Due within 
July 1,2017 Additions Deductions June 30,2018 One Year 

2,268,432 1,855,427 (2,393,804) 1,730,055 1,730,055 

53 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Compensated Absences (Continued) 
Extended illness benefits (sick leave) is earned at the rate of 4.62 hours per pay period with a 
maximum allowed of 480 hours. EIB lapses upon termination. Employees are not 
compensated for any portion of their extended illness benefits at their retirement or 
termination. Paid time off for eamed sick leave is contingent on an illness - a specific event 
that is outside the control of the employer and employee and is therefore not included in the 
Compensated Absences. 

Interfund Transactions 
Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans 
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination 
upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are 
treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a 
cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. 
All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental 
funds or between proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-
wide financial statements. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until 
then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) 
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

Net Position Classifications 
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is classified as net 
position and displayed in three components: 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets - The net investment in capital assets component of net 
position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included in this 
component of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred 
inflows of resources at the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt or deferred 
inflow of resources attributable to the unspent amount should not be included in the 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Net Position Classifications (Continued) 
calculation of net investment in capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred 
inflow of resources should be included in the same net position component (restricted or 
unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

• Restricted Net Position - consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either 
by external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
Restricted for other purposes on the Statement of Net Position consist of grant related 
cash. 

• Unrestricted Net Position - all other net position that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets". 

Net Position Flow Assumption 
Sometimes the Sheriff will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., 
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts 
to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide 
and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in 
which the resources are considered to be applied. 

It is the Sheriffs policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted - net position is applied. 

Fund Balance Classifications 
In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Sheriff is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be 
spent. Fund balance is reported in five components - nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned and unassigned. 

• Nonspendable - This component includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted - This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them 
either externally by third-parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments) or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
Enabling legislation authorizes the Sheriff to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate 
payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable 
requirement (compelled by external parties) that those resources be used only for the 
specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

• Committed - This component consists of amounts that can only be used for specific 
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the Sheriff. Those committed amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Sheriff removes or changes the specified 
use by taking the same type of action it employed previously to commit those amounts. 
Fund balance amounts are committed through a formal notification by the Sheriff. 

• Assigned - This component consists of amounts constrained by the Sheriffs intent to be 
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Fund balances may 
be assigned through the following: 1) The Sheriff assigns amounts for a specific purpose 2) 
All remaining positive spendable amounts in the governmental funds, other than the 
general fund, that are neither restricted nor committed. 

• Unassigned - This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, 
committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is 
the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In governmental 
funds other than the general fund, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the 
amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it maybe necessary 
to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund. When both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Sheriffs policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When unrestricted 
resources are available for use it is the Sheriffs policy to use committed resources first, 
then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed. 

Fund Balance Flow Assumption 
Sometimes the Sheriff will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In 
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned 
fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made 
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Sheriffs policy to 
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of 
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be 
used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund 
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

Proprietary Fund Operating and Nonoperaring Revenues and Expenses 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from fund premiums and claims and legal 
fees. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position of the Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund ("Fund") and additions 
to/deductions from the Fund's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by the Fund. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles 
The following statements of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board are effective for 
the Sheriffs 2018 fiscal year. The Sheriff has adopted and implemented these statements in 
the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

1. Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions. (2018) 

2. Statement No. 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements (2018) 
3. Statement No. 85 - Omnibus 2017 ((2018) 
4. Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues (2018) 

The following statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board will be 
effective for yeais subsequent to the Sheriffs fiscal year 2018. 

1. Statement No. 83 -Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (2019) 
2. Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities (2020) 
3. Statement No. 87 - Leases (2021) 
4. Statement No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and 

Direct Placements (2019) 
5. Statement No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost during the Period of Construction (2021) 

The Sheriff is currently evaluating the effects that these statements will have in its financial 
statements for the years ended June 30, 2019 and later. 

Note 2. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

The Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances includes a reconciliation between the net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains 
"Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Activities (Continued) 

Activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense." The details of this $393,537 difference are as follows: 

Capital Outlays $ 3,066,129 
Depreciation Expense (3.459.6661 

Net adjustment to decrease Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total 
Govemmental funds to arrive at Change in Net Position of 
Govemmental Activities 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Losses on the disposal of capital assets in 
the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds." The detail of this $8,399 is as 
follows: 

Net book value of capital assets disposed $ (8,399) 
Losses on disposal of capital assets $ (8,399) 

Governmental funds report employer contributions to its pension plan as expenditures. 
However, in the Statement of Activities, pension expense represents the Sheriffs proportionate 
share of the Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Lund's change in net pension liability. See note 10 for 
more information. The detail of this $15,364 is as follows: 

Pension expense in excess of plan contributions $ (15,364) 

Revenue reported in the Statement of Activities for the Sheriffs proportionate share of non-
employer contributions to the pension plan does not provide current financial resources and, 
therefore, is not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. See Note 10 for more detailed 
information. The detail of this $1,987,835 is as follows: 

Revenue from Sheriffs proportionate share of non-employer 
contributions to the pension plan $ 1,987,835 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Activities (Continued) 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., 
certificates of indebtedness) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while 
the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position." The details 
of the $1,298,071 difference are as follows: 

Principal Repayments and Premium Amortization on Certificates of 
Indebtedness Payable $ 1,298,071 

Accrued interest on long-term debt (e.g., certificates of indebtedness) does not require the use 
of current financial resources and, therefore is not reported as an expenditure in govemmental 
funds. 

Accrued Interest Bond Series 2011 and Bond Series 2014-Prior Year $ (214,602) 

Accrued Interest Bond Series 2011 and Bond Series 2014-Current Year $ 204,985 

Change in accrued interest Bond Series 2011 and Bond Series 2014 $ (9,617) 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The change in compensated absences 
reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the use of current financial resources 
and, therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds." The detail of this 
$538,377 difference is as follows: 

Compensated Absences-Prior Year $ 2,268,432 
Compensated Absences - Current Year ("1.730.055") 

Net Adjustment to Decrease Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total 
Govemmental Funds to Arrive at Change in Net Position of 
Govemmental Activities 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Activities (Continued) 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The change in the net other post-
employment benefit obligation reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the use 
of current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in governmental 
funds." The detail of this $1,546,570 difference is as follows: 

Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation - Prior Year $ 21,100,614 

Prior Period Adjustment-Implementation of GASB 75 23,653,915 

Deferred Outflows - OPEB 377,114 
Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation - Current Year (46.678.213) 

Net Adjustment to Decrease Net Changes in Eund Balances - Total 
Govemmental Eunds to Arrive at Change in Net Position of 
Govemmental Activities 

Note 3. Levied T axes 

Ad Valorem taxes for the Law Enforcement District are levied on the assessed value of all real 
property, and business merchandise/movable property located in the Parish as of January 1". 
These taxes are collected annually in arrears and are due by December 31". Assessed values 
are established by the St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office and the State Tax Commission 
at percentages of actual value as specified by Louisiana law. An evaluation of all property is 
required to be completed no less than every four years. The last evaluation was completed for 
the 2016 tax roll. 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes for the year: 

Expiration 
Millagc Date 

1998 Law Enforcement District 4.86 2027 

Constitutional Law Enforcement District 6.80 N/A 

These millages were adopted for the purpose of general law enforcement support. 
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Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff had $59,463,490 (book balance) in interest-bearing demand 
deposits as follows: 

Government-Wide Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Statement of 
Net Position Net Position Total 

Interest Bearing Deposits 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Sheriffs deposits may not be retumed. As of June 30, 2018, the total bank balance of 
$59,463,490 was secured from risk by $250,000 of FDIC coverage and $64,358,602 by apledge 
of securities through a collateral agreement between Capital One, N. A. (the fiscal agent bank) 
and The Bank of New York. These securities are being held in the name of the pledging fiscal 
agent bank in a custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to the Sheriff and the fiscal agent 
bank. 

Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value 
of the pledged securities, plus the federal deposit insurance, must at all times equal the amount 
on deposit with the fiscal agent. The custodial bank must advertise and sell the pledged 
securities within 10 days of being notified that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds 
upon demand. 

Note 5. Investments 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff had investments of $663,869 in various securities. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Investment Matniity Fair Value 

FHLMCNTS May 24,2019 $ 143,682 
FHLBNTS September 1,2021 159,155 
FHLBBOND October 12,2022 182,252 
FFCBBOND May 12,2025 153,052 
Other None 25,729 

Total $ 663,869 
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Note 5. Investments (Continued) 

The Sheriff categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs 
used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. All investment securities held by the Sheriff at June 30, 2018 
were measured using Level 1 inputs. 

The Sheriff does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk 

Composite 
Investment Rating Percentage 

FHLMCNTS AA+ 21.64% 
FHLB NTS AA+ 23.97% 
FHLB BOND AA+ 27.45% 
FFCB BOND AA+ 23.05% 
Other Varies 3.88% 

The Sheriff does not have a formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk and 
investment credit risk. 

The Sheriff has no formal limit on the amount the Sheriff may invest in any one issuer. 
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Note 6. Receivables 

The receivables at June 30, 2018, were as follows: 

Gener^ 
Fxmd 

Commissary 
Sp eaal Govrniment 

Speaal . . . 
Revalue Activities 

Revenue 
Fund , Tot^ 

Fund 

Sales and Use Taxes $2,115,316 $ 

AdValoremT^es 85,882 

Due from St. Tammany Parish Council 25,000 1,769,173 

Salary Reibursements 574,585 19,304 

Federal Funds 190,643 

Fees, Charges and Commissions for Service: 432,945 712,803 
Other 526,465 110,751 

77,751 

2,115,316 

85,882 

1,794,173 

593,888 

190,643 

1,223,499 

637,216 

;,950,836 $2,612,031 $ 77,751 $ 6,640,618 

All receivables are considered to be fully collected within one year of the end of the fiscal year. 
No allowance for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. 
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Note?. Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

Begituimg 

Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 

B^wce 

Capita Assets, Not Being Depredated 

C onstruction in Progre ss J 

Land 

5 14,443,776 $ 

2,878,144 

1,118,248 3 5 (15,562,024) 3 

2,878,144 

Total Capital Assets, Not Being 

Depredated 17,321,920 1,118,248 (15,562,024) 2,878,144 

Capita Assets, Being Depredated 

Leasehold Improvements 

Buildings 

Other Equipment 

Communication Equipment 

Vehicles 

187,941 

22,205,101 

11,139,101 

10,334,829 

14,729,171 

49,589 

1,050 

630,419 

15,631,237 

1,197,610 

(442,583) 

(237,533) 

(431,199) 

237,530 

22,206,151 

11,326,937 

25,728,533 

15,495,582 

Total Capital Assets, Being 

Depredated 58,596,143 17,509,905 (1,111,315) 74,994,733 

Less Accumulated Depredation for: 

Leasehold Improvements 

Buildings 

Other Equipment 

Communication Equipment 

Vehicles 

(56,574) 

(5,360,791) 

(8,245,859) 

(10,250,947) 

(11,725,057) 

(13,982) 

(747,095) 

(903,046) 

(192,037) 

(1,603,506) 

441,288 

237,613 

424,015 

(70,556) 

(6,107,886) 

(8,707,617) 

(10,205,371) 

(12,904,548) 

Total Accumulated 

Depredation (35,639,228) (3,459,666) 1,102,916 (37,995,978) 

Total Capital Assets Bdng 

Depredated, Net 22,956,915 14,050,239 (8,399) 36,998,755 

Government^ Activities -

Capitd Assets, Net 3 ; 40,278,835 $ 15,168,487 3 ; (15,570,423) 3 ; 39,876,899 

Depreciation expense of $3,459,666 was charged to governmental activities- public safety for 
the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Note 8. Leases 

Operating Leases 
The Sheriff is obligated under certain leases accounted for as operating leases. These operating 
leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations and, therefore, the results of the 
lease agreements are not reflected in the Sheriffs Statement of Net Position. Lease payments 
of $272,027 were made during the year ended June 30, 2018 for rental of buildings and other 
infrastructure used in the operation of the Sheriffs office. These amounts are reported as 
Public Safety expenses in the Statement of Activities and Operating Expenditures in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Eund Balance. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments at June 30^: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

273,674 
266,730 

79,109 
80,674 
82,153 

1,654,112 

T otal Future Mmjnmm Lease Payments 2,436,453 

Note 9. Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of long-term debt of the Sheriff for the year ended 
June 30, 2018: 

of Debt 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1,2017 Additions Reductions June 30,2018 One Year 

Certificate of Indebtedness 

Series 2011 6,290,000 

Certificate of Indebtedness 

Series 2014 13,881,859 

(335,000) 5,955,000 350,000 

(963,071) 12,918,788 998,071 

Total Governmental Activities 

Long-term Liabilities 20,171,859 (1,298,071) 18,873,788 1,348,071 
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Note 9. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff was obligated under the following agreements: 

On August 1, 2011, the Sheriff issued Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 in the amount 
of $8,000,000, maturing on March 1, 2031. The bonds were issued for the purpose of building 
a new crime lab facility in Slidell, Louisiana, making capital improvements, including the 
acquisition of furnishings and equipment, and paying the costs of issuance thereof. Principal 
is payable in annual installments with semi-annual interest payments with variable rates. As 
of June 30, 2018, the bonds held a fixed rate of 3.00%. The long-term debt is secured by excess 
revenue of the Sheriff. 

On March 20, 2014, the Sheriff issued Limited Tax Revenue Bond, Series 2014 in the amount 
of $15,400,000, maturing on March 1, 2029. A bond premium was included at disbursement 
in the value of $346,072. The bonds were issued for the purpose of acquiring a radio system 
and paying the costs incurred in connection with the issuance thereof. Principal is payable in 
annual installments with semi-annual interest payments with variable rates. As of June 30, 
2018, the bonds held a fixed rate of 2.0%. The long-term debt is secured by excess revenue of 
the Sheriff. 

Total future principal and interest payments under the certificates of indebtedness were as 
follows: 

^ear Ending 
June 30, 

2018 
Principal 

Bond 
Premium 

Total 
Principal and 

Bond 
Premhim 

Interest Total 

2019 1,325,000 23,071 1,348,071 614,956 1,963,027 
2020 1,370,000 23,071 1,393,071 584,956 1,978,027 
2021 1,420,000 23,071 1,443,071 533,806 1,976,877 
2022 1,475,000 23,071 1,498,071 480,806 1,978,877 
2023 1,525,000 23,071 1,548,071 425,806 1,973,877 

Thereafter 11,505,000 138,433 11,643,433 1,565,158 13,208,591 

Total $ 18,620,000 $ 253,788 $18,873,788 $4,205,488 $23,079,276 

Standard & Poor's Public Financing Ratings, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, 
Inc. ("S&P") has assigned the Series 2011 and the Series 2014 Bonds a municipal Debt rating 
of "AA" (stable). S&P defines a "AA" rating as having a very strong capacity to meet financial 
commitments. 
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Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description 
The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office (the Sheriff) provides certain continuing health care 
and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs OPEB 
Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the 
Sheriff. The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees 
and retirees rests with the Sheriff. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria 
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting Eor Benefits Not Provided 
Through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria—Defined Benefit. 

Benefits Provided 
Medical, dental and life insurance benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement. 
The employer pays 100% of the medical/dental coverage for the retiree only (not dependents) 
for retirees who retired prior to September 1, 2012. The employer pays a graded percentage of 
the premium for eligible retirees who retire on and after September 1, 2012 equal to 3 1/3% 
multiplied by the number of years of service at retirement, to a maximum of 100% at 30 years. 
To be eligible for retirement benefits under the OPEB Plan, employees hired before September 
1, 2012 must have 12 years of credible service at the Sheriffs Office. Employees hired after 
September 1, 2012 must have 15 years of credible services at the Sheriffs Office. 

Life insurance coverage is available to retirees after retirement by election. The retiree "pays" 
for 100% of the cost of the retiree life insurance, but it is a blended rate. Insurance coverage 
amounts are reduced to 75% of the original amount at age 65 and to 50% of the original 
amount at age 70. 

Employees covered by benefit terms-At June 30,2018, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 153 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 0 
Active employees 667 

820 

Total OPEB Liability 

The Sheriffs total OPEB liability of $46,678,213 was measured as of June 30, 2018 and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
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Note 10. Post-Employment Benefits (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs - The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 
actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other 
inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inflation 
Discount rate 3.87%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, 

including inflation 
Healthcare cost trend rates Elat 5.5% annually 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation 
municipal bond index as of June 30, 2018, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Table without projection with 50%/50% unisex 
blend. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of 
ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2018. 

Changes in the T otal OPEB Liahility 

Balance at June 30, 2017 $44,754,529 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 994,483 
Interest 1,709,091 
Differences between expected and actual experience 404,051 
Benefit payments (1,183,941) 

Net changes 1,923,684 

Balance at June 30, 2018 $46,678,213 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB fiahility to changes in the discount rate 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Sheriff, as well as what the Sheriffs total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point 
lower (2.87%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.87%) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 
(2.87%) (3.87%) (4.87%) 

Total OPEB Liability $55,208,987 $46,678,213 $40,129,658 
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB fiahility to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Sheriff, as well as what the Sheriffs total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare 
trend rates: 

Total OPEB Liability 

1.0% Decrease 
(4.5%) 

Current Discount Rate 
(5.5%) 

1.0% Increase 
(6.5%) 

$38,939,435 S46,678,213 $55,399,331 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outfiows of Resources and Deferred Infiows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 

Eor the year ended June 30, 2018, the Sheriff recognized OPEB expense of $2,730,511. At 
June 30, 2018, the Sheriff reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience _$ 377,114 $ 

Total $ 377,114 $ 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

26,937 

26,937 

26,937 

26,937 

26,937 
242,429 
377,114 
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Note 11. Pension Plan 

Plan Description 
Substantially all employees of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs office participate in the 
Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund ("Fund"). The Fund is a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan established in accordance with the provisions of Louisiana 
Revised Statute 11:2171 to provide retirement, disability and survivor benefits to employees 
of sheriffs offices throughout the State of Louisiana, employees of the Louisiana Sheriffs' 
Association, and the employees of the Fund. The Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund issues a 
publically available financial report that includes its financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The report is available on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's 
website at www.lla.la.gov or may be obtained by writing to the Sheriffs' Pension and Relief 
Fund, 1225 Nicholson Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802. 

Benefits Provided 
All sheriffs and deputies who are found to be physically fit, who cam at least $1,000 and who 
at the time of original employment was age 18 or older are required to participate in the 
pension plan. The Fund provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits as follows: 

Retirement benefits 
Members who became eligible for membership on or before December 31, 2011 

Members with twelve years of creditable service may retire at age fifty-five; members with 
thirty years of service may retire regardless of age. The retirement allowance is equal to three 
and one-third percent of the member's average final compensation multiplied by his years of 
creditable service, not to exceed (after reduction for optional payment form) 100% of average 
final compensation. Active, contributing members with at least ten years of creditable service 
may retire at age sixty. The accrued normal retirement benefit is reduced actuarially for each 
month or fraction thereof that retirement begins prior to the member's earliest normal 
retirement date assuming continuous service. 

Members who became eligible for membership on or after January 1, 2012 

Members with twelve years of creditable service may retire at age sixty-two; members with 
twenty years of service may retire at age sixty; members with thirty years of creditable service 
may retire at age fifty-five. The benefit accrual rate for such members with less than thirty 
years of service is three percent; for members with thirty or more years of service, the accrual 
rate is three and one-third percent. The retirement allowance is equal to the benefit accrual 
rate times the member's average final compensation multiplied by his years of creditable 
service, not to exceed (after reduction for optional payment form) 100% of average final 
compensation. Members with twenty or more years of service may retire with a reduced 
retirement at age fifty. 
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Eligible for Membership Calculation of Average Final Compensation 

On or Before June 30, 2006 Average monthly earnings during the highest thirty-six 
consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted. Earnings to be considered for each twelve­
month period within the thirty-six month period shall not 
exceed 125% of the preceding twelve-month period. 

After June 30, 2006 and Average monthly earnings during the highest sixty 
Before July 1, 2013 consecutive months or joined months if service was 

interrupted. Earnings to be considered for each twelve­
month period within the sixty-month period shall not 
exceed 125% of the preceding twelve-month period. 

After July 1, 2013 Average monthly earnings during the highest sixty 
consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted. Earnings to be considered for each twelve­
month period within the sixty-month period shall not 
exceed 115% of the preceding twelve-month period. 

Disabilitv benefits 
A member is eligible to receive disability benefits if he has at least ten years of creditable service 
when a non-service related disability occurs; there are no service requirements for a service 
related disability. Benefits shall be the lesser of 1) a sum equal to the greatest of 45% of average 
final compensation or the member's accrued retirement benefit at the time of the termination 
of employment due to disability, or 2) the retirement benefit which would be payable assuming 
continued service to the earliest normal retirement age. Members who become partially 
disabled receive 75% of the amount payable for total disability. 

Survivor benefits 
Survivor benefits for death solely as a result of injuries received in the line of duty are based 
on the following: For a spouse alone, a sum equal to 50% of the member's average final 
compensation with a minimum of $150 per month. If a spouse is entitled to benefits and has 
a child or children under eighteen years of age (or over said age if physically or mentally 
incapacitated and dependent upon the member at the time of his death), an additional sum of 
15% of the member's average final compensation is paid to each child with total benefits paid 
to spouse and children not to exceed 100%. If a member dies with no surviving spouse, 
surviving children under age eighteen will receive monthly benefits of 15% of the member's 
average final compensation up to a maximum of 60% of average final compensation if there 
are more than four children. If a member is eligible for normal retirement at the time of death. 
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the surviving spouse receives an automatic option 2 benefit. The additional benefit payable to 
children shall be the same as those for members who die in the line of duty. In lieu of receiving 
option 2 benefit, the surviving spouse may receive a refund of the member's accumulated 
contributions. All benefits payable to surviving children shall be extended through age twenty-
three, if the child is a full time student in good standing enrolled at a board approved or 
accredited school, college, or university. 

Deferred benefits 
The Fund does provide for deferred benefits for vested members who terminate before being 
eligible for retirement. Benefits become payable once the member reaches the appropriate age 
for retirement. 

Back Deferred Retirement Option Plan (Back-DROP) 
In lieu of receiving a service retirement allowance, any member of the Fund who has more 
than sufficient service for a regular service retirement may elect to receive a "Back-DROP" 
benefit. The Back -DROP benefit is based upon the Back-DROP period selected and the 
average final compensation prior to the period selected. The Back-DROP period is the lesser 
of three years or the service accrued between the time a member first becomes eligible for 
retirement and his actual date of retirement. For those individuals with thirty or more years, 
the Back-DROP period is the lesser of four years or service accrued between the time a member 
first becomes eligible for retirement and his actual date of retirement. At retirement, the 
member's maximum monthly retirement benefit is based upon his service, average final 
compensation and plan provisions in effect on the last day of creditable service immediately 
prior to the commencement of the Back-DROP period. In addition to the monthly benefit at 
retirement, the member receives a lump-sum payment equal to the maximum monthly benefit 
as calculated above multiplied by the number of months in the Back-DROP period. In 
addition, the member's Back-DROP account will be credited with employee contributions 
received by the retirement fund during the Back-DROP period. Participants have the option 
to opt out of this program and take a distribution, if eligible, or to rollover the assets to another 
qualified plan. 

Cost of Living Adjustments 
Cost of living provisions for the Fund allows the board of trustees to provide an annual cost 
of living increase of 2.5% of the eligible retiree's original benefit if certain funding criteria are 
met. Members are eligible to receive a cost of living adjustment once they have attained the 
age of sixty and have been retired at least one year. Funding criteria for granting cost of living 
adjustments is dependent on the funded ratio. 

Conttibutions 
According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially 
determined each year. The Sheriffwas required to contribute 13.25% from July 1, 2016to June 
30 2017 and 12.75% from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018. Employees are required to contribute 
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10.25% of their annual pay. In addition, the Fund also received non-employer contributions 
including ad valorem taxes, insurance premium taxes and state revenue sharing funds. The 
Sheriffs allocation percentage of these additional sources of income, which are not considered 
special funding situations, are recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense. 

The Sheriffs proportionate share of employer contributions for the measurement period was 
$4,595,020 and the proportionate share of non-employer contributions was $1,987,835. 

The Sheriffs actual contributions to the pension for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016 were $3,893,903, $4,600,521, and $4,707,878, respectively. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriffs office reported a liability of $21,684,915 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Sheriffs reported liability at June 30, 2018 decreased 
by $9,996,570 from the prior year liability of $31,681,485 because of changes in the Fund's net 
pension liability and the Sheriffs proportionate share of that liability. 

The Sheriffs allocation of the net pension liability was based on the Sheriffs projected 
contribution effort to the plan for the next fiscal year as compared to the total of projected 
contributions of all participants, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the Sheriffs 
proportion was 5.007747%, which was an increase of .016096% from the 4.991651% 
proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Sheriff recognized pension expense of $3,909,267. 
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At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of 
of Resources Resources 

Differences between expected 
expected and actual experience $ - $ 3,774,841 

Changes of assumptions 3,815,573 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan - 311,244 

investments 
Changes in proportion and differences 

between Sheriffs contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 168,819 253,096 

Contributions made subsequent to the 
measiffement date 3,893,903 

$ 7,878,295 $ 4,339,181 

The Sheriffs office recognized in pension expense its proportionate share of the Fund's change 
in net pension liability as follows: 

Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic 
factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized in pension expense 
using the strai^t-Iine amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the 
pension plan. 

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments 
were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed 
five-year period. 

Changes in assumptions about future economic demographic factors or of other inputs were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided with pensions through the pension plan. 
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Changes in the Sheriffs proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and 
collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior 
measurement date were recognized in Sheriffs pension expense using the straight-line 
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining 
service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Differences between contributions remitted to the Fund during the measurement period and 
the employer's proportionate share of contributions are recognized in pension expense using 
the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension 
plan. 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the sheriffs contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date in the amount of $3,893,903 will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30th Amoimt 

2019 $ (914,536) 
2020 1,404,116 
2021 529,454 
2022 (1,633,315) 

2023 158,758 
2024 100,734 

$ (354,789) 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 11. Pension Plan (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total net pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation of the Fund was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Actual Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Investment Rate of Retum 7.5%, net of investment expense 
Projected Salary Increases 5.5% (2.775% inflation, 2.725% Merit) 
Mortality Rates RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar 

Adjustment Sex Distinct Table for active members, 
healthy annuitants and beneficiaries 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 2017 and 2016-7 years; 2015 and 2014-6 years 
Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is 

based on benefits currently being paid by the Fund 
and includes previously granted cost of living 
increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the board of trustees as they were 
deemed not to be substantively automatic. 

The mortality rate assumptions were set after reviewing an experience study performed over 
the period of July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014. The data was then assigned credibility 
weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This 
mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the 
Fund's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those 
produced by using a setback of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that these 
tables would produce liability values approximating the appropriate generational mortality 
tables used. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 11. Pension Plan (Continued) 

Estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class based on the fund's target 
asset allocation as of the June 30, 2017 valuation were as follows: 

Long-Term Real Retum Expected 
Target Asset Arithmetic Portfolio Real 

Asset Class Allocation Basis Rate of Retum 

Equities 60.00% 7.40% 4.40% 

Fixed Income 25.00% 2.60% 0.70% 

Alternatives 15.00% 4.20% 0.60% 

Total 100.00% 5.70% 

Inflation 2.60% 

Expected Real Rate of Retum 8.30% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.4 percent. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from 
participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by 
PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the Fund's actuary. Based on these 
assumptions the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. For the June 30, 2016 valuation, the discount 
rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. 

Sensitivitv of the Sheriffs proportionate share of the net pension liabilitv to changes in the 
discount rate 

The following presents the Sheriffs proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the Sheriffs proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage 
point lower (6.4 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease 
6.4% 

Current 
Discount Rate 

7.4% 
1% Increase 

8.4% 

$ 44,676,643 $ 21,684,915 $ 2,340,508 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 11. Pension Plan (Continued) 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund's financial report. 

Note 12. Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of the Sheriff may elect to participate in the Louisiana Public Employees Deferred 
Compensation Plan adopted under the provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code Section 457. 
Complete disclosures relating to the Deferred Compensation Plan are included in the 
separately issued audit report for the Plan, available from the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, 
P.O. Box 94397, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9397. 

Currently, the Sheriff does not contribute to the deferred compensation plan. 

Note 13. Litigation and Contingency 

From time to time the Sheriff is involved in litigation arising from normal day to day 
operations. In the opinion of the Sheriffs legal counsel, financial exposure to and the 
resolution of these lawsuits does not create a liability to the Sheriff in excess of insurance 
coverage, nor does any lawsuit present a materially adverse impact on the operations of the 
office. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Office of Inspector General audited grant 
award funds received from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), whereas 
FEMA disallowed certain expenses submitted for reimbursement. The Sheriff disputed the 
results of that audit and further review was done. An agreement was reached to allow the 
Sheriff to net all balances of reimbursement funds due to the Sheriff and refunds due to 
Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness (GOHSEP) however 
grants due to the Sheriff are still under review. After the March 2016 flood Project 4263 and 
other closed and approved FEMA projects that were under review, the estimated amount due 
to FEMA as of June 30, 2018 is $0.00. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 14. Changes in Agency Fund Balances 

A summary of changes in balances due to taxing bodies, prisoners and others follows: 

Sheriffs 

Fund 

Tax 

Collector 

Fund 

Jail 

Agency 

Fund 

Work 

Release 

Fund 

Fines 

and Cost 

Fund Total 

Balance at June 30,2017 $ 2,169,079 $ 25,837,276 $ 442,109 $ 112,047 $ 482,097 $ 29,042,608 

Additions 23,276,321 541,728,930 628,191 - 4,848,244 570,481,686 

Deductions (23,019,359) (544,443,251) (625,719) (101,674) (4,795,533) (572,985,536) 

Balance at June 30, 2018 2,426,041 $ 23,122,955 $ 444,581 10,373 534,808 $ 26,538,758 

Note 15. Self-Insurance 

The Sheriff is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
Sheriff has contracted with various insurers to cover his risk of loss on assets, which he owns, 
with the exception of motor vehicles for which he retains the risk of loss. The Sheriff has 
retained a portion of his risks as to general and police professional liability for which he has 
established an internal service fund to account for and finance his portion of these risks. 

Liability Risk Management 
The Sheriff has established a self-insurance fund for his deductible for general liability, 
professional liability, and automobile liability. The Sheriff purchases insurance contracts for 
the coverage of general liability, professional liability, and automobile liability and buildings 
and contents. 

Limit of coverage is $1,000,000 for liability with $2,000,000 excess coverage. The Sheriff self-
insures retention of $750,000 per occurrence for general liability, professional liability, and 
automobile liability. The insurance covers up to a maximum of $3,000,000 aggregate per 
claim year for all occurrences. The cost of claims is recorded as an expense in the Internal 
Service Fund when the claims arise. Resources to fund the plan are recorded as revenues. 
Settlements did not exceed coverages in the current year. Insurance coverage's have not 
significantly changed from the prior year. Claim liabilities are reported when it is probable 
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Claim 
liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not paid as of June 30, 
2018. These liabilities are recorded at their present value of $48,655. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 15. Self-Insurmice (Continued) 

Liability Risk Management (Continued) 
Changes in the balances of claim habilities during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, are as 
follows: 

2018 2017 2016 

Beginning of Year Liabihty $ 95,247 $ 17,490 $ 121,768 
Claims and Legal Fees 1,056,951 636,980 1,498,782 
Payments (1,103,543) (559,223) (1,603,060) 

Balance at Fiscal Year End ^^^^^48i655^^^^^^^5^24^^^^^^^7^49^ 

Note 16. Taxes Paid Under Protest 

The unsettled balances due to taxing bodies and others at June 30, 2018, include taxes paid 
under protest, plus interest earned to date on the investment of these funds, totals $851,692. 

Note 17. Intergovernmental Agreement 

Effective July 1,2016, the Sheriff and the Parish entered into an agreement whereas the Parish 
recognizes its obligation to provide the expenses for the feeding, care and medical treatment 
of parish prisoners incarcerated in the St. Tammany Parish Jail and further recognizes its 
obhgation to provide the expenses for maintenance and operation of the Jail and its buildings, 
structures and jail facilities, as per Louisiana law; and the Sheriff recognizes his obligation as 
keeper of the Jail to provide for the feeding and care of prisoners incarcerated in the Jail and 
to provide for the medical treatment of prisoners in the Jail. 

An amendment to the above agreement was entered into effective April 1, 2018 ending 
December 31, 2018 to provide for the payment of the Jail Operations for the remaining nine 
(9) calendar months of 2018 while the Parish and Sheriff endeavor to identify funding for each 
party's statutorily-mandated obligations following the expiration of the Jail Sales and Use Tax 
in March 2018. 

Note 18. Expenditures of the Sheriff Paid by the Parish 

The Sheriff occupies two facilities owned by the Parish. Both facilities are being utilized by the 
jail. The cost of maintaining and operating the jail, as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 
33:4715, is paid by St. Tammany Parish with a sales and use tax that expired on March 31, 
2018. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 19. Expenditures Compared to Appropriations 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, expenditures were below appropriations in the General 
Fund by $6,804,115; budgeted expenditures exceeded actual expenditures during this fiscal 
year. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, expenditures were greater than appropriations in the Jail 
Special Revenue Fund by $23,236; budgeted expenditures exceeded actual expenditures 
during this fiscal year. 

Note 20. Interfiind Transactions 

Transfers between funds for the year ended June 30, 2018, are as follows: 

T ransfers In T ransfers Out 

General Fund 
Jail Special Revenue Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Bond Sinking Fund 
Crime Lab Special Revenue Fund 

Total 

1,918,806 

$ 1,918,806 

$ 1,918,806 $ 1,918,806 

Interfund transfers are used to fund the operating expenses of various funds. 

Note 21. Jail Special Revenue Fund Financial Reporting 

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the Sheriffs office began issuing Jail Financial 
Reports to the St. Tammany Parish Government on a quarterly basis, per the recommendation 
of the Louisiana Legislative Auditors draft report dated December 20, 2010. During the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2018, the Sheriffs office issued quarterly Jail Financial Reports and an 
annual report. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 22. Ex-Officio Tax Collector 

At June 30, 2018, the Tax Collector Fund had cash and interest-bearing deposits on hand 
totaling $23,122,195. The Tax Collector Fund had collected ad-valorem taxes and had ad-
valorem taxes uncollected for the year ended June 30, 2018, by taxing body as follows: 

AdvaloremTax AdvaloremTax 
Taxing Bodies Collected Uncollected 
Alimony 1 $ 4,163,760 $ 217,735 
Alimony 2 798,987 51,679 
Animal Shelter 1,636,391 92,239 
Assessor 5,188,553 289,466 
City of Covington 2,931,047 82,273 
City of Mandeville 1,982,723 66,915 
Cityof Slidell 7,141,513 610,239 
Coroner's Millage 6,505,611 360,237 
Council on Aging/STARC 3,831,540 199,680 
Drain District #2 Phs. 2 74,044 7,800 
Drain District #5 Gravity 191,995 6,411 
Drain District #5 Phs. 1 60,180 9,686 
Drainage District #4 165,368 1,730 
Drainage Maintenance 3,532,214 196,941 
Fire District#! 19,089,837 1,513,131 
Fire District #1 Parcel Fee 1,295,041 3,549 
Fire District #11 1,423,168 91,967 
Fire District #12 6,386,233 198,961 
Fire District #13 2,642,358 169,530 
Fire District #2 4,162,241 112,745 
Fire District #3 1,545,118 123,502 
Fire District #4 14,273,114 589,521 
Fire District #5 906,675 39,363 
Fire District #6 539,170 27,714 
Fire District #7 787,122 70,584 
Fire District #8 1,184,177 99,790 
Fire District #9 835,429 64,488 
Florida Parish Juvenile Ctr. 5,487,900 299,295 
Law Enforcement 24,648,433 1,061,796 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 22. Ex-OfiRcio Tax Collector (Continued) 
AdvaloremTax AdvaloremTax 

Taxing Bodies Collected Uncollected 

Libraiy 12,113,274 615,115 

Lighting Dist. #16 44,876 1,813 

Lighting District # 6 - 820 

Lighting District #1 182,640 14,126 

Lighting District #11 5,153 42 

Lighting District #14 22,350 

Lighting District #15 - 213 

Lighting District #4 301,697 33,263 

Lighting District #5 17,287 329 

Lighting District #7 295,986 17,550 

LLC Assmnt Fee Other 5,418 207 

LLC Assmnt/Public Ser. 53,151 2,870 

Mosquito District #2 8,082,168 471,353 

Northshore Harbor Center 446,190 200,489 

Parish Code Enforcement 5,370 179,045 

Parish Blighted 980 1,434 

Parish Demolition - 118,145 

Public Health 3,532,214 196,231 
Rec. Dist 1 Special 2 200,437 4,212 

Recreation Dist. 1 Special 303,804 2,061 

Recreation Dist. 6 310,585 19,298 

Recreation District #1 4,175,333 182,756 

Recreation District #11 616,298 27,952 

Recreation District #12 358,625 17,166 

Recreation District #14 2,769,602 106,987 

Recreation District #2 19,092 6,338 

Recreation District #4 406,266 30,277 

Recreation District #7 - 10,079 

Road Lighting District #10 1,550 4 

Road Lighting District #9 83,552 699 

School Add. Support II 5,767,235 181,531 

School Bldg. Repair 6,585,464 365,459 

School Contruction Tax 7,283,926 405,391 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 22. Ex-OfiRcio Tax Collector (Continued) 

Taxing Bodies 

School District #12 

School Maint. Operations 

School Operation & Maint. 

Sewerage District # 6 

Slidell Grass Cutting 

Slidell Demolition 

Slidell Hospital District 

Sub-Drainage Dist. 3 of Gravity 

Sub-Drainage District #1 

Sub-Drainage District #2 

TBRLAND Fire Protection 

Town of Abita Springs 

Town of Madisonville 

Town of Pearl River 

Water District #2 

Total 

Advalorem T ax 

Collected 
33,741,561 
9,259,556 

67,910,084 

4,719 
7,614 

4,637,348 

60,311 

82,359 
122,000 
16,878 

347,546 
128,821 
309,270 
118,645 

Advalorem T ax 

Uncollected 
2,040,304 
512,798 

3,776,087 

660 
7,091 

272,610 
391,312 

400 
18 

18,951 

3,593 

83,795 

4,527 

$ 294,147,174 $ 16,984,368 

The majority of uncollected taxes consist of adjudications of immovable property and movable 
(business) taxes. 

The total Occupational License collections on behalf of other taxing authorities for the year 
ended June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

T axing Authority 
Total Collection Final 

Collections Cost Distribution 
St. Tammany Parish Govemment $ 4,035,077 $ 606,099 $ 3,428,978 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 22. Ex-officio Tax Collector (Continued) 

The total Sales Tax collections on behalf of other taxing authorities for the year ended June 
30, 2018 is as follows: 

Total Collection Final 

T^ng Authority Collections Cost Distribution 

St. Tanunany Parish School Board 1966 $ 48,388,673 $ 555,002 $ 47,833,671 

St. Tanunany Parish School Board 1977 48,388,673 555,002 47,833,671 

Law Enforcement District 12,097,183 138,746 11,958,437 

District No. 3 47,798,276 547,775 47,250,501 

Motel T ourist Commission 1,522,700 17,683 1,505,017 

Recreation District 20,549 240 20,309 

St. Tammany Events Center Hotel Occupancy 355,475 4,116 351,359 

City of Slidell 19,804,978 227,657 19,577,321 

City of Mandeville 15,707,914 180,182 15,527,732 

City of Covington 12,063,414 138,453 11,924,961 

Town of Pearl River 1,523,887 17,421 1,506,466 

Town ofMadisonville 1,006,162 11,275 994,887 

T own of Abita Springs 922,397 10,513 911,884 

Nord Du Lac EDD 2,081,938 26,129 2,055,809 

Rooms to Go 65,203 751 64,452 

Summit Fremaux 642,289 7,339 634,950 

Village of Folsom 735,744 8,404 727,340 

City of Sun 58,290 676 57,614 

Jail Expansion 10,101,721 127,525 9,974,196 

New Courthouse 10,101,721 127,525 9,974,196 

Northshore Square EDD 91,786 1,122 90,664 

Camellia Square 73,464 801 72,663 

Camellia Square Hotel 35,060 413 34,647 

HWY 59 EDD 280,941 3,724 277,217 

HWY 1077 EDD 170,558 2,290 168,268 

HWY 434 EDD 23,595 347 23,248 

HWY 1088 EDD 943 13 930 

AIRPORT RD EDD 2,019 23 1,996 

HWY 21 EDD ESCROW 154,056 1,919 152,137 

HWY 59 EDD ESCROW 101,514 1,293 100,221 

Tot^ $ 234,321,123 $ 2,714,359 $ 231,606,764 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 23. Change in Accounting Principles 

Net Position for Governmental Activities as of July 1, 2017 has been restated as follows for 
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as previously stated 8,288,642 

Prior Period Adjustment- Implementation of GASB 75 
Increase in Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability (23,653,915) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated (15,365,273) 

Note 24. Tax Abatements 

Tax abatements are agreements in which a government promises to forego tax revenues and 
the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to 
economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. 

As of June 30,2018, the Sheriff had not entered into any tax abatement agreements. However, 
the Sheriff was subject to tax abatements granted by other governments as follows. 

State of Louisiana 
The Louisiana Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program (ITEP) is an original state 
program, which offers a tax incentive for manufacturers who make a commitment to jobs and 
payroll in the state. In fiscal year 2018, the Sheriffs Ad Valorem tax revenue was reduced by 
$50,000 due to ITEP agreements entered into by the State. 

St. Tammany Parish Council 
The Restoration Tax Abatement Program (RTA) is an incentive created for local governments 
to encourage the expansion, restoration, improvement and development of existing structures 
in downtown development districts, economic development districts and historic districts. The 
St. Tammany Parish Council also enters into agreements with local businesses to encourage 
economic development. In fiscal year 2018, the Sheriffs Ad Valorem tax revenue was reduced 
by $40,000 due agreements entered into by the St Tammany Parish Council. 

Note 25. Subsequent Events 

Management of the Sheriffs Office has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 
2018, the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. The Sheriff is not aware 
of any subsequent events that would require recognition in the financial statements or 
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratio 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service Cost $ 994,483 
Interest 1,709,091 
Changes of benefit terms 
Differences between expected and actual experience 404,051 

Changes of Assumptions 
Benefit payments 1,183,941 

Net change in total OPEB Liability $ 1,923,684 

Total OPEB Liability - beginning 44,754,529 

Total OPEB Liability - ending _$ 46,678,213 

Covered-employee payroll $ 28,146,800 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 165.84% 

Notes to Required Supplementallnformation: 

Effective July 1, 2017, the Sheriff implemented GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Refer to the notes of the financial statements 
for additional information. 

Benefit Changes: There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Changes of Assurt^tions: There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

No Assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB No. 75, paragraph 4, to pay 
related benefits. 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed 
as they become available. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund 
Last Five Fiscal Years 

Measurement Period 

Proportion of the net pension liability 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Covered payroll during measurement period 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

2018 

62.45% 

88.49% 

2017 
Fiscal years 

2016 2015 

92.53% 

82.10% 

67.05% 

86.61% 

61.31% 

87.34% 

2014 

6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2013 

5.007747% 4.991651% 5.004422% 4.979735% 5.071537% 

21,684,915 $ 31,681,485 $ 22,307,301 $ 19,719,771 $ 33,989,159 

34,720,913 $ 34,239,113 $ 33,270,225 $ 32,164,226 $ 32,130,574 

105.78% 

77.22% 

Notes: 

Information related to 2013 through 2009 is not available. 

Changes in Assumptions: 
Effective measurement period ended June 30, 2016, the actuarial valuation of the Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund assumed seven years 
as the expected remaining service lives. Previously, six years was assumed. The report for the Sheriffs' Pension and Relief fund is 
available on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website at www.lla.la.gov or may be obtainedby writing to the Sheriffs' Pension and 
Relief Fund, 1225 Nicholson Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
Schedule of Pension Contributions 
Sheriffs' Pension and Relief Fund 
Last Six Fiscal Years 

Fiscal years 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Statutorily required contributions $ 3,893,903 $ 4,600,521 $ 4,707,878 $ 4,741,007 $ 4,467,611 $ 4,257,301 

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contributions (3,893,903) (4,600,521) (4,707,878) (4,741,007) (4,467,611) (4,257,301) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered payroll during fiscal year $30,540,416 $34,720,913 $34,239,113 $33,270,225 $32,164,226 $32,130,574 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 12.75% 13.25% 13.75% 14.25% 13.89% 13.25% 

Notes: 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 

Information related to 2012 throu^ 2009 is not available. 

See independent auditor's report. 
89 



EHSiTE ARNUAL FIRARCIAL REPOBT FOR THE YEAR ERRED JDHE 30,2018 

CoMBiNiiG AND iNDKiDuti FUND 
FINHNCIAI STATEMENTS 

NONMAJOBGOTEBNMENTAL FUNDS 



***This Page Intentionally Blank*** 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Fund Descriptions 
Nonm^or Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2018 

Special Revenue Fund 
The Commissary Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of sales of various goods and 
services to inmates of the Parish jail. Expenditures of the fund are for purchases of equipment, supplies 
and maintenance. 

Crime Lab Special Revenue Fund 
The Crime Lab Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of criminal fees dedicated to the 
crime lab. Expenditures of the fund are for the operation of the crime lab. 

Bond Sinking Fund 
The Bond Sinking Fund accounts for all schedule bond payments issued related to the Series 2011 
Certificate of Indebtedness and the future payments of Series 2014 Certificate of Indebtedness. These 
funds are transferred from the General Fund, prior to issuing payment. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2018 

Commissary 
Special 
Revenue 

Frmd 

Crime Lab 
Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

Bond 
Sinking 
Frmd 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Ftmds 

Assets 
Cash 
Receivables 

$ 913,975 
77,751 

$ 1,026,462 $ 12,908 $ 1,953,345 
77,751 

Total Assets $ 991.726 $ 1.026.462 $ 12.908 $ 2.031.096 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 

$ 64,846 
4,185 

$ $ $ 64,846 
4,185 

Total Liabilities 69,031 69,031 

Fund Balances 
Restricted, reported in: 

Special Revenue Fund 
Bond Sinking Fimd 

Committed, reported in: 
Special Revenue Fund 922,695 

1,026,462 
12,908 

1,026,462 
12,908 

922,695 

Total Fund Balances 922,695 1,026,462 12,908 1,962,065 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 991.726 $ 1.026.462 $ 12.908 $ 2.031.096 

See independent auditor's report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonm^or Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Commissary 
Special 

Revenue 
Fund 

Crime Lab 
Special 

Revenue 
Fund 

Bond 
Sinking 
Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

Revenues 
Inteigovemmental Revenues 

State Supplemental Pay 
Fees, Charges and Commissions for Services 

Criminal Fees 
Commissions 

Interest Eamings 

461 

361,218 
5,136 

337,754 

6,692 906 

461 

337,754 
361,218 
12,734 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Public Safety 

Persoimel Services 
Payroll Benefits 
Operating Expenses 
Professional Fees 
Materials and Supplies 
Insurance 

Debt Service 
Principal 
Interest 

Capital Outlays 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Changes in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances, End of Year 

366,815 344,446 906 712,167 

65,066 
22,578 

301 
11,079 
37,927 

341 

41,979 

179,271 

187,544 

187,544 

735,151 

168,362 

28,314 
39,896 

236,572 

1,275,000 
643,806 

107,874 (1,917,900) 

107,874 

918,588 

1,918,806 

906 

12,002 

65,066 
22,578 

168,663 
11,079 
66,241 
40,237 

1,275,000 
643,806 
41,979 

(1,622,482) 

1,918,806 

296,324 

922,695 1,026,462 12,908 1,962,065 

See independent auditor's report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Fund Descriptions 
Fiduciary Fund - Agency Funds 
June 30, 2018 

Sheriff's Agency Fund 
The Sheriffs Agency Fund accounts for funds held in connection with civil suits, Sheriffs sales and 
garnishments. It also accounts for the collections of bonds, probation fines and disbursement of these 
collections, in accordance with applicable law. 

T ax Collector Agency Fund 
Article V, Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, provides that the Sheriff will serve as the 
collector of State and Parish taxes and fees. The Tax Collector Agency Fund accounts for the 
collection and distribution of these taxes and fees to the appropriate taxing bodies. 

Jail Agency Fund 
The Jail Agency Fund accounts for individual prisoner account balances. Funds are deposited in the 
name of the prisoner and payable upon request. Balances in the individual prisoner accounts are 
returned upon completion of their jail sentence. The Jail Agency Fund also accounts for collection 
and disbursement of certain fees charged to inmates upon incarceration. 

Transitional Woik Program Agency Fund 
The Transitional Work Program Agency Fund accounted for the account balances of individual 
prisoners who were in the work release program and other funds that were not due back to the 
prisoners. The funds that belonged to the prisoners were deposited in the name of the prisoner and 
payable upon request. Balances in the individual prisoner accounts were returned to the inmate upon 
completion of their jail sentence. All funds owed to participants in the program were transferred with 
the inmate when the program was ended. The remaining balance in the Transitional Work Program 
Agency Fund consists of funds that were received from contraband, sanctions and disciplinary actions. 
The current balance in the account for contraband and not due to prisoners is $10,373. 

Fines and Cost Agency Fund 
The Fines and Cost Agency Fund accounts for the collection and settlement of fines and costs received 
by the courts, in accordance with applicable law. 

93 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Combining Statement of Net Position 
Fiduciary Fund - Agency Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Agency Fxmds 

Sheriffs 
Fund 

Tax Collector 
Fund 

Jail Agency 
Fund 

T ransitional 
Work Program 

Fund 

Fines 
and Cost 

Fund Total 
Assets 

Cash and Interest-Bearing 
Deposits - Ad Valorem 
Deposits - Other T^es 

$ 
2,426,041 

$ 8,067,445 
15,055,510 

$ 
444,581 

$ 
10,373 

$ 
534,808 

$ 8,067,445 
18,471,313 

T otal Assets $ 2,426,041 $ 23,122,955 $ 444,581 $ 10,373 $ 534,808 $ 26,538,758 

Liabilities 
Due to Taxing Bodies and 

Others $ 2,426,041 $ 23,122,955 $ 444,581 $ 10,373 $ 534,808 $ 26,538,758 

T otal Liabilities $ 2,426,041 $ 23,122,955 $ 444,581 $ 10,373 $ 534,808 $ 26,538,758 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Combining Schedule of Changes in Balances 
Due to Taxing Bodies and Others 
Fiduciary Fund - Agency Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Agency Fxmds 
Tax Fines 

Sheriffs Collector Jail Agency Transitional Work and Cost 
Fund Fund Fund Program Fund Fund Total 

Balances, Beginning of Year $ 2,169,079 $ 25,837,276 $ 442,109 $ 112,047 < 5 482,097 $ 29,042,608 

Additions 
Deposits 

Sheriff s Sales 22,586,412 - - - - 22,586,412 
Bonds 689,909 - - - - 689,909 
Fines and Costs - - - - 4,848,244 4,848,244 
Other Deposits - - 622,931 - - 622,931 

Taxes, Fees, etc.. Paid to Tax Collector - 541,647,952 - - - 541,647,952 
Interest - 80,978 5,260 - - 86,238 

T otal Additions 23,276,321 541,728,930 628,191 4,848,244 570,481,686 

Siib total 25,445,400 567,566,206 1,070,300 112,047 5,330,341 599,524,294 

Reductions 
Taxes, Fees, etc.. Distributed to 

Taxing Bodies and Others - 544,443,251 - - - 544,443,251 
Deposits Settled to: 

Sheriff s General Ftmd 2,161,658 - 236,056 101,674 553,242 3,052,630 
Clerk of Court 1,794,403 - - - 467,883 2,262,286 
Litigants and Appraisers 1,353,269 - - - - 1,353,269 
Others 629,775 - 62,717 - 523,800 1,216,292 
Advertisements 85,534 - - - - 85,534 
District Attomey 950 - 126,025 - 647,955 774,930 
Parish Council - - - - 1,516,144 1,516,144 
Judicial Expense Ftmd - - 101,930 - 297,294 399,224 
Indigent Defender Board - - 98,821 - 766,989 865,810 
Refunds to Individuals 16,993,770 - 170 - 22,226 17,016,166 

T otal Reductions 23,019,359 544,443,251 625,719 101,674 4,795,533 572,985,536 

Balances, End of Year $ 2,426,041 $ 23,122,955 $ 444,581 $ 10,373 < 5 534,808 $ 26,538,758 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Ad Valorem Tax Affidavit 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
PARISH OF ST. TAMMANY 

AFFIDAVIT 

BEFORE ME, Itie urkdersigned aultiority, personally carne and appeared, Randv 

Smith . ihe sheriff of St. Tammanv Parish . State of Louisiana, who after being 

duly swom, deposed and said; 

The following information Is true and correct: 

S23.122.95S Is the amount of cash on hand In the Tax Collector Fund 

on 30"' day of June 2018 . 

HB further deposed ar>d said: 

All itemized statements of the amount of taxes collected for tax year 2017, 

by taxing authority, are true and correct. 

All Itemized stat^ents of all taxes assessed and uncollected, which indicate 

the reasons for the failure to ̂ lect, by taxing authority, are true and correct 

Randy Smith 
St. Tammany Pariah Sheriff 

SWORN to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, this 9S"^dav of 0 

2018, in my office In 3\>Ag\\ Louisiana. 

rn. (Signature) 

(Print). 11 I 

Notary l^blic Commission # 

_ (Commission) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payment to Agency Head 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Agency Head Name: SherifFRandy Smith 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $161,537.26 
Benefits-insurance $8,532.50 
Benefits-retirement $20,595.97 
Benefits-Expense Account $0.00 
Car allowance -0-
Vehicle provided by government Note 1 
Per diem -0-
Reimbursements -0-
Travel -0-
Registration fees $1,536.10 
Conference travel $4,558.56 
Continuing professional education fees -0-
Housing -0-
Unvouchered expenses -0-
Special meals -0-

Note 1: Use of a qualified nonpersonal use vehicle, including commuting, is excludable to the 
employee as a working condition fringe benefit if the specific requirements for the type of vehicle are 
met. Recordkeeping and substantiation by the employee are not required by the IRS. Reg § 1.274-
5T(k;Reg.§1.132-5(h). 

IRS Fringe Benefit Guide, Office of Federal, State and Local Governments, Publication 5137 (1-2014) 
excludes qualified nonpersonal use vehicles from employee income for unmarked vehicles used by 
law enforcement officers if the use is officially authorized. The Sheriff has complied with the 
requirements of this regulation. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH LOUISIANA 
Statistical Section 

This part of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs comprehensive annual financial report 
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information 
in the financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information 
says about the Sheriffs office overall financial health. 

Contents Tables 

Financial Trends 1-5 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the Sheriffs financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 6-11 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the fiduciary 
collections of revenues by the Sheriff as well as the revenues of the Sheriff. 

Debt Capacity 12-13 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the Sheriffs current levels of outstanding debt and the Sheriffs 
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 14-15 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the Sheriffs financial report relates 
to the services the Sheriff provides and the activities his office performs. 

Operating Information 16-19 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the Sheriffs financial report relates to the 
services the Sheriff provides and the activities it performs. 
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ST. TAMMANYPARISH SHERIFF Table 1 
ST. TAMMANYPARISH, LOUISIANA 
Net Position By Component 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(AccmalBasis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Governmental Activities 
Net investment in Capital Assets 

Restricted for: 
Crime Lab Expenditures 
Capital Projects Fund 
Debt Service 
General Fund-Equitable Sharing 

Unrestricted 

$ 21,256,899 

1,026,462 
2,150 

12,908 
87,859 

(29,911,685) 

$ 21,340,059 

918,588 
1,159,373 

12,002 
183,961 

(38,979,256) 

$ 21,629,125 

642,766 

11,974 

(18,694,513) 

$ 23,539,748 

1,093,163 

11,968 

(22,963,758) 

$ 23,216,715 ; 

1,968,575 

11,957 

(23,831,024) 

$ 22,606,051 ; 

1,694,141 

11,949 

(3,139,856) 

$ 22,443,444 ! 

1,451,597 

11,943 

(299,016) 

$ 22,689,018 

1,201,268 

559,113 

$ 22,385,511 

2,027,473 

$ 19,505,833 

1,601,908 

T otal Governmental Activities Net Position $ (7,525,407) $(15,365,273) $ 3,589,352 $ 1,681,121 $ 1,366,223 ; $ 21,172,285 ; $ 23,607,968 ; $ 24,449,399 $ 24,412,984 $ 21,107,741 

T otal Primary Government Net Position $ (7,525,407) $(15,365,273) $ 3,589,352 $ 1,681,121 $ 1,366,223 • $ 21,172,285 ; $ 23,607,968 ; $ 24,449,399 $ 24,412,984 $ 21,107,741 

NOTE: 
Amounts Reported in 2017 have been restated to comply with the requirements of GASB No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions." Total Net Position was 
decreased by $23,653,915 from what was previously reported. 

Amounts reported in 2014 have been restated to comply with the requirements of GASB No. 68 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions." Total Net Position was decreased by $29,521,548 from what 
was previously reported. 
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sr. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
SI. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUTSIANA 
Changes in Na Poation 
Last Ten Rscal Years 
(Accrual Baas of Accounting) 

Table 2 

(UnauditecB 

Expenses 

Governmental Activities 
Public Safety $ 64,676,529 i 70,682,777 $ 71,386,067 $ 70,086 867 3 70,407,737 71,352,944 $ 67,896,375 3 65 167,731 3 59,749,995 58,321,813 
Interest onLong-TermDebt 634,189 662,339 919,375 676 902 242,806 501,062 413,070 225,709 330,571 424,034 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 65,310,718 71,345,116 72,305,442 70,763 769 70,650,543 71,854,006 68,309,445 65 393,440 60,080,566 58,745,847 

Total Primary Government Expenses $ 65,310,718 i 71,345,116 $ 72,305,442 $ 70,763 769 3 70,650,543 71,854,006 $ 68,309,445 3 65 393,440 3 60,080,566 58,745,847 

Program Revenues 

Governmental Activities 

Public Safety 
Charges for Services $ 18,487,824 i 22,966,467 $ 21,363,488 $ 20,113 687 3 20,205,527 25,570,788 $ 23,931,774 3 22 660,659 3 19,016,809 20,642,906 
Operating Grants and Contributions 9,110,092 6,188,325 5,872,842 5,563,283 3,851,162 3,937,159 4,430,879 5 568,252 8,222,713 4,113,039 

Capital Grants and Contributions - - - - - - - - 141,565 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 27,597,916 29,154,792 27,236,330 25,676 970 24,056,689 29,507,947 28,362,653 28 228,911 27,239,522 24,897,510 

Total Primary Government Program Revenues $ 27,597,916 i 29,154,792 $ 27,236,330 $ 25,676 970 3 24,056,689 29,507,947 $ 28,362,653 3 28 228,911 3 27,239,522 24,897,510 

Na (Expens^ Revenue 

Governmental Activities (37,712,802) (42,190,324) (45,069,112) (45,086 799) (46,593,854) (42,346,059) (39,946,792) (37 164,529) (32,841,044) (33,848,337) 

Total Primary Government Net (Expense) Revenue $ (37,712,802) i (42,190,324) $ (45,069,112) $ (45,086 799) 3 (46,593,854) (42,346,059) $ (39,946,792) 3 (37 164,529) 3 (32,841,044) (33,848,337) 

Genaal Revenues andOtha Changes in Na Poation 

Governmental Activites 

Taxes 
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 23,125,527 i 21,894,548 $ 21,124,931 $ 20,390 156 3 19,768,442 18,852,429 $ 18,127,726 3 17 802,904 3 17,540,369 15,952,173 

Sales andUse Taxes 12,017,191 11,925,645 11,537,043 11,093 328 10,530,878 10,239,921 9,627,039 9 296,271 8,915,631 9,563,238 

Intergovernmental Revenues 
Transfer from St. Tammany Parish Council 8,950,465 11,925,644 11,537,051 11,091 107 10,530,878 10,239,921 9,628,014 9 296,066 8,915,631 9,563,238 

Interest and Investment Earnings 222,271 60,759 42,501 43 898 69,933 63,973 86,883 41,793 75,428 181,295 

Miscellaneous 
Other Revenues 1,237,214 1,083,018 2,735,817 2,783 208 4,093,657 615,720 828,707 631,426 699,228 1,773,573 
Special Community Disaster Loan Forgiveness - - - - 11,315,552 - - - -
Gain (loss) onDisposal ofAssets - - - - - (101,588) - 360,196) - 152,804 

Total Governmental Activities General Revenues 45,552,668 46,889,614 46,977,343 45,401 697 56,309,340 39,910,376 38,298,369 36 708,264 36,146,287 37,186,321 

Total Primary Government General Revenues $ 45,552,668 i 46,889,614 $ 46,977,343 $ 45,401 697 3 56,309,340 39,910,376 $ 38,298,369 3 36 708,264 3 36,146,287 37,186,321 
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sr. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
SI. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUTSIANA 
Changes in Na Poation 
Last Ten Rscal Years 
(Accrual Baas of Accounting) 

Table! (Continued) 

(UnauditecB 

Extraorcfinary items 

Special Community Disaster Loan Forgiveness 

Total Extraordinary Items $ - $ - : I - $ < $ $ - $ 492,680 $ - $ -

Changes in Na Poation 

Governmental Activities 7,839,866 4,699,290 1,908,231 314,898 9,715,486 (2,435,683) (1,6' 18,423) 36,415 3,305,243 3,337,984 

Total Primary Government $ 7,839,866 $ 4,699,290 : I 1,908,231 $ 314,898 ; f 9,715,486 $ (2,435,683) $ (1,6' 18,423) $ 36,415 $ 3,305,243 $ 3,337,984 

NOTE: 
The Sales and Use Tax Revenues for 2009 have been restated to Intergovernmental Revenues to conform with the succeeding years financial statement presentation. 
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ST. TAMMANYPARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANYPARISH, LOUISIANA 
Fund Beileinces - Governmental Funds 
Last T en Fisceil Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accouiting) 

(Unaudited) 

Tables 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Genereil Fund 
Reserved for: 

Inventory and Prepaid Expenses $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ - $ 11,184 3 ; 11,184 
Payment of Community Disaster Loan 7,028,008 

Unreserved 9,844,580 1,857,892 
Nonspendable 217,715 197,414 110,594 112,546 119,574 97,096 181,560 89,815 
Restricted 87,859 183,961 
Assigned 822,910 
Unassigned 22,342,775 16,285,769 13,323,506 10,177,511 9,847,360 9,905,682 9,861,837 9,942,365 

T otal General Fund $23,471,259 $ 16,667,144 $ 13,434,100 $ 10,290,057 $ 9,966,934 $ 10,002,778 $ 10,043,397 $ 10,032,180 $ 9,855,764 3 ; 8,897,084 

All Other Govemmeileil Funds 
Reserved for: 

Construction $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ - $ 1,138,309 3 ; 442,272 
Payment of Community Disaster Loan 2,906,120 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds 4,100,300 622,298 

Nonspendable 20,413 18,029 10,216 3,637 7,485 2,949 
Restricted, reported in: 

Capital Projects Fund 2,150 1,159,373 2,340,279 8,641,345 17,649,397 7,527,650 7,589,003 
Special Revenue Funds 1,026,462 918,588 642,766 1,093,163 1,968,575 1,694,141 1,451,597 1,201,268 
Bond Sinking Fund 12,908 12,002 11,974 11,968 11,957 11,949 11,943 

Committed, reported in: 
Capital Projects Fund 5,565,094 5,530,763 5,523,755 5,520,990 5,318,522 4,880,447 5,240,549 2,665,572 
Special Revenue Funds 922,695 735,151 537,618 694,270 524,918 453,865 363,555 771,612 

Assigned, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds 4,190,193 4,215,813 2,882,163 2,452,311 2,427,052 2,388,808 2,459,646 2,476,203 

T otal All Other Govemmental Funds $ 11,739,915 $ 12,589,719 $ 11,948,771 $ 18,414,047 $ 27,900,421 $ 16,960,497 $ 17,123,778 $ 7,117,604 $ 5,238,609 3 ; 3,970,690 

Total All Funds $35,211,174 $ 29,256,863 $ 25,382,871 $ 28,704,104 $ 37,867,355 $26,963,275 $ 27,167,175 $ 17,149,784 $ 15,094,373 3 ; 12,867,774 

NOTE 1: 

GASH Statement No. 54 was implemented for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Amounts for earlier periods are not available for comparison purposes. 

NOTE 2: 

For 2011, Prepaid Expenses previously reported as Unassigned have been properly restated as Nonspendable. 
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ST. TAMMANYPARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANYPARISH, LOUISIANA 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Revenues 
Taxes (See Table 5) $ 35,142,718 $ 33,820,193 $ 32,661,974 $ 31,483,484 $ 30,299,320 $ 29,092,350 $ 27,754,765 $ 27,099,175 $ 26,456,000 $ 25,515,411 
Intergovernmental Revenues 16,072,722 16,174,930 15,536,109 14,880,551 14,382,040 14,177,080 14,058,893 14,864,318 17,138,344 13,817,842 
Fees, Charges, and Commissions for Services 18,487,824 22,966,467 21,363,488 20,113,687 20,205,527 25,570,788 23,931,774 22,660,659 19,016,809 20,642,906 
Interest and Investment Earnings 206,746 58,755 41,657 42,594 68,504 62,510 85,145 36,953 70,379 171,614 
Other Revenues 1,245,613 1,108,397 2,758,215 2,827,421 4,257,910 615,720 828,707 832,003 699,228 1,773,573 

Total Revenues $ 71.155.623 $ 74.128.742 $ 72.361.443 $ 69.347.737 $ 69.213.301 $ 69.518.448 $ 66.659.284 $ 65.493.108 $ 63.380.760 $ 61.921.346 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public Safety $ 58,796,122 $ 62,582,782 $ 64,379,049 $ 63,503,095 $ 62,836,118 $ 63,373,457 $ 60,153,646 $ 58,188,999 $ 54,215,620 $ 55,062,520 
Inte igovernmental 

Transfer to St. Tammany Parish Council 1,420,255 1,882,656 1,877,357 1,865,570 1,852,363 1,690,881 1,531,850 1,522,250 1,513,100 1,511,000 
Debt Sen/ice 

Principal 1,275,000 1,230,000 1,195,000 295,000 285,000 270,000 900,000 665,000 1,340,000 8,640,000 
Interest 643,806 671,606 695,506 676,902 242,806 248,206 158,056 31,679 64,337 163,554 

Capital Outlay 3,066,129 3,020,887 7,535,764 12,170,421 8,839,006 4,139,804 1,898,341 3,029,769 4,021,104 8,931,595 

Total ExpencHtures $ 65.201.312 $ 69.387.931 $ 75.682.676 $ 78.510.988 $ 74.055.293 $ 69.722.348 $ 64.641.893 $ 63.437.697 $ 61.154.161 $ 74.308.669 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures $ 5.954.311 $ 4.740.811 $ (3.321.233) $ (9.163.251) $ (4.841.992) $ (203.900) $ 2.017.391 $ 2.055.411 $ 2.226.599 $ (12.387.323) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers In $ 1,918,806 $ 1,901,606 $ 2,578,082 $ 2,751,661 $ 1,052,806 $ 835,719 $ 3,277,470 $ 1,980,000 $ 1,862,080 $ 1,800,000 
Transfers Out (1,918,806) (2,768,425) (2,578,082) 0,751,661) (1,052,806) (835,719) (3,277,470) (1,980,000) (1,862,080) (1,800,000) 
BondProceeds - - - - 15,746,072 - 8,000,000 - - -
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - - - - - 152,804 
Other Debt Proceeds - - - - - - - - - 10,000,000 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - $ (866.819) $ $ $ 15.746.072 $ $ 8.000.000 $ $ $ 10.152.804 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 5,954,311 $ 3,873,992 $ (3,321,233) $ (9,163,251) $ 10,904,080 $ (203,900) $ 10,017,391 $ 2,055,411 $ 2,226,599 $ 0,234,519) 

Fund Balances 

Beginning of Year 29,256,863 25,382,871 28,704,104 26,963,275 26,963,275 27,167,175 17,149,784 15,094,373 12,867,774 15,102,293 

End of Year $ 35.211.174 $ 29.256.863 $ 25.382.871 $ 17.800.024 $ 37.867.355 $ 26.963.275 $ 27.167.175 $ 17.149.784 $ 15.094.373 $ 12.867.774 

Debt Service as a Percentage 
of Noncapital Expenditures 3.09% 2.87% 2.77% 1.47% 0.81% 0.79% 1.69% 1.15% 2.46% 13.47% 

NOTE 1: Restated Bond Poceeds in Fiscal Year 2014 to combine the Bond Proceeds and the Bond Premium. 

NOTE 2: The Sales and Use Taxes andlntergovemmental Revenues reported in 2009 have been restated to conform uith the succeecUng years financial statement presentation. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
T ax Revenues By Source - Governmental Funds 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Tables 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Tax Revenues By Source 
Taxes 

Ad Valorem Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 

$23,125,527 $21,894,548 $21,124,931 $20,390,156 $19,768,442 $18,852,429 $18,127,726 $17,802,904 $17,540,369 $ 15,952,173 
12,017,191 11,925,645 11,537,043 11,093,328 10,530,878 10,239,921 9,627,039 9,296,271 8,915,631 9,563,238 

Total Tax Revenues $35,142,718 $33,820,193 $32,661,974 $31,483,484 $30,299,320 $29,092,350 $27,754,765 $27,099,175 $26,456,000 $25,515,411 

NOTE: The Sales and Use Taxes and Intergovernmental Revenues reported in 2009 have been restated to conform with the succeeding years financial statement presentation. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

T able 6 

Fiscal 
Year 

Real Estate 

Assessed 
Value 

Commercial and 
Other Property 

Assessed 
Value 

Public 
Service 

Assessed 
Value 

Total 

Assessed 
Value 

Less: 
Homestead 
Exemption 

Value 

Total 
Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

Total 

Estimated 
Actual Value 

Total 

Direct 
Tax Rate 

Ratio of Total 
Assessed Value to 

Total Estimated 
Actual Value 

2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 

1,844,442,348 

1,795,342,097 

1,683,346,771 

1,653,788,138 

1,625,207,518 

1,611,086,720 

1,549,208,119 
1,551,283,480 

1,475,161,071 

1,494,925,262 

547,880,131 

538,475,196 

515,343,602 

485,971,275 

462,495,913 

454,962,856 

421,433,149 
420,951,939 

399,716,191 

373,503,547 

136,798,010 

140,782,480 

137,487,050 

139,303,800 

125,316,300 

104,498,020 

106,645,220 
99,722,070 

95,591,400 

91,860,940 

2,529,120,489 

2,474,599,773 

2,336,177,423 

2,279,063,213 

2,213,019,731 

2,170,547,596 
2.077.286.488 
2.071.957.489 

1,970,468,662 

1,960,289,749 

507,774,412 

515,492,919 

505,544,763 

501,455,681 

498,862,148 

499,788,758 

496,593,299 
498,218,082 

498,976,767 

498,406,661 

2,021,346,077 

1,959,106,854 

1,830,632,660 

1,777,607,532 

1,714,157,583 

1,670,758,838 

1,580,693,189 
1,573,739,407 

1,471,491,895 

1,461,883,088 

22,644 

22,106 

20,819 

20,334 

19,836 

19,561 

18,728 
18,718 

17,798 

17,806 

149,727 

385,530 

039,923 

905,080 

646,467 

944,987 

216,397 
069,340 

750,917 
,720,027 

11.66 

11.25 

11.66 

11.66 

11.66 

11.66 

11.73 
11.73 

11.73 

11.73 

11.17% 

11.19% 

11.22% 

11.21% 

11.16% 

11.10% 

11.09% 
11.07% 

11.07% 

11.01% 

NOTE: 
Total assessed value is based on the following percentages of estimated actual value. 

Real Estate 
Commercial and Other Property 
Public Service 

10% 
15% 
25% 

SOURCES: 
St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office; Louisiana Tax Commission Annual Reports 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

Table 7 

For the Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30,2018 June 30,2009 

Percentage of Percentage of 

Total Parish Total Parish 

T^able Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Type of Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

T^payer Business Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation 

Central La. Electric, Co. Utility $ 49,843,670 1 2.47% $ 37,398,500 1 2.56% 

Florida Marine Transporters Transportation 16,699,250 2 0.83% 

AT&T Southeast Telephone 12,551,030 3 0.62% 

Associated Wholesale Grocers Retailer 11,865,840 4 0.59% 

Chevron USA Inc. Oil 11,427,970 5 0.57% 

Atmos Energy Louisiana Utility 10,306,090 6 0.51% 

Parkway Pipeline, LLC Oil 9,614,250 7 0.48% 

Tri-States NGL Pipeline, Inc. Gas 9,121,700 8 0.45% 

J P Morgan Chase Bank Bank 8,478,555 9 0.42% 7,343,260 4 0.50% 

Wash.-St. Tammany Elec. Coop Utility 7,182,870 10 0.36% 5,359,600 8 0.37% 

Bellsouth Telecommunications Telephone 19,731,930 2 1.35% 

Capital One Bank Bank 11,111,010 3 0.76% 

Verizon Wireless C ommunications 5,919,020 5 0.40% 

Parish National Bank Bank 5,909,554 6 0.40% 

AT&T Mobility LLC C ommunications 5,746,945 7 0.39% 

Stirling Mandeville LLC Property Management 5,057,275 9 0.35% 

Central Progressive Bank Bank 4,994,620 10 0.34% 

$ 147,091,225 7.30% $ 108,571,714 7.42% 

SOURCE: 
St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF Table 8 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Rate per $1,000 of Assessed Value, Unaudited) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Direct Rates: 

Law Enforcement 11.66 11.25 11.66 11.66 11.66 11.66 11.73 11.73 11.73 11.73 

Overlapping Governments' Rates: 

Parish Government 19.94 19.94 20.67 19.01 19.01 19.43 19.54 19.54 19.54 19.54 
School District 65.41 66.41 68.18 68.18 68.18 68.18 68.45 68.45 68.45 69.45 
Other Parish-Wide 9.40 9.40 9.64 9.74 9.86 9.96 10.20 10.45 10.45 10.45 
Cities, Towns and Villages 93.02 92.97 89.44 97.86 97.90 94.64 99.10 99.90 100.98 102.05 
Fire Districts 351.71 351.71 352.54 342.62 346.82 352.66 354.68 353.31 374.92 379.62 
Lighting Districts 15.30 15.30 17.65 17.65 17.65 18.44 18.58 18.58 18.58 18.58 
Recreational Districts 61.70 60.20 70.88 67.68 72.98 70.83 66.13 74.90 73.00 76.40 
Other Districts 14.00 16.95 17.90 19.00 19.75 20.00 20.00 19.15 19.48 19.48 

SOURCE: 
St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office 
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ST. T AMMANY PARI SH SHERIFF T able 9 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Property T ax Levies and CoUections 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

TotalTaxLevy 23,568,771 22,039,862 21,345,034 20,726,772 19,986,938 19,480,929 18,541,477 18,459,922 17,260,581 17,147,802 

Current Tax Collections 23,023,811 21,760,572 20,930,650 20,265,465 19,676,861 18,569,039 18,024,948 17,709,879 * 15,900,039 

Percent of Levy Collected 98% 99% 98% 98% 98% 95% 97% 96% * 93% 

Collections for Prior Years 101,716 133,976 194,281 124,691 91,581 283,390 102,778 93,025 * 52,134 

Total Collections 23,125,527 21,894,548 21,124,931 20,390,156 19,768,442 18,852,429 18,127,726 17,802,904 17,540,369 15,952,173 

Ratio ofTotal Collections to Tax Levy 98% 99% 99% 98% 99% 97% 98% 96% 102% 93% 

NOTE: 
Tax Collections for fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 totalled $17,540,369. The allocation of cmrent and prior year tax collections is not available. 

SOURCE: 
Total Tax Levy, St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Principal Sales T axpayers 
Current year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

Table 10 

LAW ENFORCEMENT DISTRICT 

Jime30, 2018 Jime30, 2009 
PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE 

TYPE OE BUSINESS OE TOTAL TOTAL OE TOTAL TOTAL 

Motor Vehicles 13.09% 10.18% 
Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 2.74% 4.05% 

Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 1.83% 2.80% 
Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 1.79% 2.38% 
Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 1.57% 2.12% 

Biilding Materials 1.34% 1.35% 

Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 1.23% 1.33% 
Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 1.08% 0.00% 

Biilding Materials 0.83% 1.01% 
Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 0.72% 0.00% 
Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 0.67% 0.00% 

Biilding Materials 0.00% 0.83% 

Grocery / Discoimt Retailer 0.00% 0.75% 

Total -10 Largest Taxpayers 26.89% 3 ; 3,231,364 26.80% S 2,561,998 

Total - All Other Taxpayers 73.11% 3 ; 8,785,827 73.20% S 7,001,240 

T otal - All T axpayers 100.00% 3 ; 12,017,191 100.00% S 9,563,238 

NOTE: 
The Sales and Use Taxes and Inteigovemmental Revenues reported in 2009 have been restated to conform with the succeeding 
years financial statement presentation. 

SOURCE: 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff s Office 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 11 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

St. Tanunany Parish SherifPs Direct Rates: 

Law Enforcement District 

Overlapping Parish-Wide Rates: 

State of Louisiana 

St. Tammany Parish School Board 

St. Tammany Parish Jail 

St. Tammany Parish Court House 

City, Town, Village and Other Jurisdiction Rates: 

Sales Tax District No. 3 (unicorporated St. Tammany) 

Slidell 

Covington 

Mandeville 

Pearl River 

Madisonville 

Abita Springs 

Folsom 

Sun 

Highway 21 Economic Development District 

Rooms To Go Ecomonic Development District 

0.25% 

5.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

5.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

5.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 

0.25% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.25% 

0.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.25% 

2.00% 

2.00% 

2.50% 

2.50% 

0.75% 

0.75% 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fremaux Fcomomic Development District 

Camellia Square Fcomomic Development District 

Northshore Square Fcomomic Development District 

Highway 1077 Economic Development District 

Highway 1088 Economic Development District 

Highway 59 Economic Development District 

Highway 434 Economic Development District 

Airport Road Economic Development District 

Table 11 (Continued) 

0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 

1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 

0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 

0.75% 0.75% 

0.75% 0.75% 

0.75% 0.75% 

0.75% 0.75% 

0.75% 0.75% 

0.50% 0.50% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 

1.00% ..... 

NOTES: 
Act 26 of the 2016 First Extraordinary Session of the Louisiana Legislature enacted La. R.S. 47:321.1 which imposed an additional state sales tax in the amount of one percent (1%). The 
provisions of Act 26 were effective on April 1, 2016. Act 1 of the 2018 Third Extraordinary Session of the Louisiana Legislature amended La. R.S. 47:321.1 (A), (B), and (C) reducing the 
sales tax rate to forty-five hundredths of one percent (.45%) beginning July 1, 2018. 

Fremaux Economic Development District's sales tax rate became effective on April 1, 2008 and decreased July 1, 2012. Camelia Square Economic Development District's sales tax rate 
became effective July 1, 2013. Northshore Square Econcomic Development District's sales tax rate became effective on April 1, 2015. Folsom's sales tax rate was decreased to 2% effective 
September 30, 2015 and increased to 2.5% effective January 1, 2016. Highway 1077, Highway 1088, Highway 59, Highway 434, and Airport Road Economic Development District's sales 
tax rates were in effect from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017. 

St. Tammany Parish Jail's sales tax expired on March 31, 2018. 

SOURCE: 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 12 

Governmental Activities Percentage of 
Limited Certificates Community Total Percentage of Estimated Actual 

Eiscal Tax Revenue of Disaster Primary Personal Per Value of 
Year Bonds Indebtedness Loan Govemment Income Capita Property 

2018 $ 18,873,788 $ $ $ 18,873,788 * 74 0.08% 
2017 20,171,859 - - 20,171,859 0.15% 80 0.09% 
2016 21,424,930 - - 21,424,930 0.15% 86 0.10% 
2015 22,643,001 - - 22,643,001 0.17% 92 0.11% 
2014 22,961,072 - - 22,961,072 0.19% 95 0.12% 
2013 7,500,000 - 9,441,448 16,941,448 0.14% 71 0.09% 
2012 7,770,000 - 9,441,448 17,211,448 0.16% 73 0.09% 
2011 - 670,000 9,441,448 10,111,448 0.09% 43 0.05% 
2010 - 1,335,000 9,934,128 11,269,128 0.11% 49 0.06% 
2009 - 2,675,000 9,934,128 12,609,128 0.12% 55 0.07% 

NOTE: 
Details regarding the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

SOURCES: 
See Table 6 for Estimated Actual Value of Property. 
See Table 14 for Demographic Statistics. 

* Information not available. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of June 30, 20 18 
(Unaudited) 

Table 13 

Share of 
Debt Percentage Overlapping 

Governmental Unit Outstanding AppUcable Debt 

Direct Debt: 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff $ 18,873,788 100% $ 18,873,788 

Overlapping Debt To Be Repaid with Property Taxes: 
City of Covington * 4,229,000 100% 4,229,000 
City of SHdell *** 20,192,921 100% 20,192,921 
Fire Protection District No. 1 * 2,075,000 100% 2,075,000 
Fire Protection District No. 2 * 3,805,000 100% 3,805,000 
Fire Protection District No. 4 * 350,000 100% 350,000 
Fire Protection District No. 9 * 130,000 100% 130,000 
Fire Protection District No. 12 * 2,755,000 100% 2,755,000 
Gravity Drainage District No. 5 * 415,000 100% 415,000 
Northshore Harbor Center * 1,655,000 100% 1,655,000 
Recreation District No. 1 * 8,161,955 100% 8,161,955 
Recreation District No. 2 * 35,000 100% 35,000 
Recreation District No. 6 * 1,360,000 100% 1,360,000 
Recreation District No. 11 * 1,900,000 100% 1,900,000 
Recreation District No. 12 * 75,000 100% 75,000 
Recreation District No. 14 * 10,445,000 100% 10,445,000 
Sub-drainage District No. 1 of 3 * 33,000 100% 33,000 
Sub-drainage District No. 3 of GDD No. 5 * 51,000 100% 51,000 
St. Tammany Parish Government * 7,755,000 100% 7,755,000 
St. Tammany Parish School Board *** 245,875,176 100% 245,875,176 
St. Tammany Parish Hospital Service District No. 2 * 42,625,000 100% 42,625,000 
St. Tammany Parish Water District No. 2 * 1,415,000 100% 1,415,000 
Town of Abita Springs * 973,000 100% 973,000 

$ 356,311,052 $ 356,311,052 

Other Debt: 
City of Covington * 1,235,000 100% 1,235,000 
City of SHdell *** 327,200 100% 327,200 
City of Mandeville ** 1,010,000 100% 1,010,000 
Fire Protection District No. 11 * 75,861 100% 75,861 
Fire Protection District No. 12 * 513,375 100% 513,375 
Fremaux Economic Development District *** 10,650,249 100% 10,650,249 
Sewerage District No. 4 * 50,000 100% 50,000 
St. Tammany Parish Commmiication District No. 1 * 5,990,000 100% 5,990,000 
St. Tammany Parish Drainage District No. 5 * 85,184 100% 85,184 
St. Tammany Parish Government * 56,681,884 100% 56,681,884 
St. Tammany Parish School Board *** 2,666,667 100% 2,666,667 
St. Tammany Parish Hospital Service District No. 1 * 94,656,000 100% 94,656,000 
St. Tammany Parish Hospital Service District No. 2 * 7,615,000 100% 7,615,000 
St. Tammany Parish Water District No. 2 * 43,000 100% 43,000 
St. Tammany Parish Waterworks District No. 3 * 2,165,086 100% 2,165,086 
Town of Abita Springs * 29,000 100% 29,000 

$ 183,793,506 $ 183,793,506 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of June 30, 20 18 
(Unaudited) 

Capital Leases/Notes Payable: 

Table 13 (Continued) 

Eire Protection District No. 2 * 653,015 100% 653,015 
Eire Protection District No. 4 * 469,414 100% 469,414 
Eire Protection District No. 5 * 331,446 100% 331,446 
Eire Protection District No. 8 * 206,043 100% 206,043 
Eire Protection District No. 11 * 464,775 100% 464,775 
Eire Protection District No. 13 * 971,566 100% 971,566 
Recreation District No. 14 * 502,334 100% 502,334 
St. Tammany Parish School Board *** 1,253,088 100% 1,253,088 
Town of Abita Springs * 121,410 100% 121,410 
Town of Pearl River * 59,837 100% 59,837 

$ 5,032,928 $ 5,032,928 

Total Overlapping Debt 

T otal Direct and Overlapping Debt 

545,137,486 

564,011,274 

NOTE 1: 
The Debt Outstanding Balance represents the amoimt reported as of Jtme 30, 2018 or on the most current financial statements as 
indicated below. 

* as of 12/31/17 
** as of 8/31/17 
*** as of 6/30/17 

NOTE 2: 
Overlapping governments are those that coincide at least in part, with the geographic botmdaries of the parish. This disclosm'e 
recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt bidden bome by the 
residents and businesses shotdd be taken into accoimt. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore 
responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government. The percentage overlap is calculated by dividing the amoimt of 
the revenue base from which the debt will be repaid contained within the overlapping area by the total revenue base of the 
overlapping government. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Demographic Statistics 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 14 

Total Per Capita 
Eiscal Personal Personal Unemploy: 
Year Population Income Income Rate 

2018 256,327 * * 4.3% 
2017 253,602 $ 13,214,954,000 $ 52,109 5.0% 
2016 249,968 13,929,884,000 55,727 5.3% 
2015 246,026 13,323,959,000 54,157 5.7% 
2014 242,427 11,936,091,000 49,236 5.1% 
2013 239,323 11,883,840,000 49,656 5.2% 
2012 236,832 10,952,024,000 46,244 5.7% 
2011 234,568 11,023,437,000 46,995 5.7% 
2010 231,224 10,359,196,000 44,802 5.3% 
2009 229,252 10,619,863,000 46,324 3.6% 

SOURCES: 
Population, US Census Bureau- July 2017 
Population, Personal Income, and Per Capita Personal Income, Bureau of Economic Analysis 2009-2017 
Unemployment Rate, Bureau of Labor Statistics 

* Information is not available. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Principal Enq)loyers 
Cxjrrent year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

Table 15 

For the Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30,2018 June 30, 2009 

Employer Employees Rank 

Percentage of 
Total St. Tammany 

Parish 
Employment Employees Rank 

Percentage of 
Total St. Tammany 

Parish 
Employment 

St. Tammany Parish School Board 5,839 1 5.20% 5,410 1 5.05% 
St. Tammany Parish Hospital 2,176 2 1.94% 1,688 2 1.57% 
Slidell Memorial Hospital 1,469 3 1.31% 1,158 3 1.08% 
Lakeview Regional Medical Center 950 4 0.85% 721 5 0.67% 
Ochsner Medical Center- Northshore 942 5 0.84% 
Hombeck Offshore Services, Inc. 756 6 0.67% 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 700 7 0.62% 743 4 0.69% 
St. Tammany Parish Govemment 699 8 0.62% 620 6 0.58% 
Textron Systems Marine & Land Systems 390 9 0.35% 
City of Slidell 356 10 0.32% 358 9 0.33% 
Southeast Louisiana Hospital 517 7 0.48% 
Northshore Regional Medical Center 427 8 0.40% 
Gilsbar Inc. 309 10 0.29% 

Total - 10 Largest Employers 14,277 12.72% 11,951 11.14% 

Total - All Employers 112,244 107,230 

SOURCES: 
2018: 2017-2018 New Orleans CityBusiness 2017-2018 Northshore Book of Lists; 2017 Bureau of Labor Statistics; St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office; 

St. Tammany Parish Govemment 
2009: New Orleans CityBusiness 2006-2007 Book of Lists; 2008 Bureau of Labor Statistics; St. Tammany Parish 

Sheriffs Office; St. Tammany Parish Govemment; St. Tammany Parish School Board; City of Slidell 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
FuU-Time Equivalent Employees By Function 
Last TenFiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 16 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 
Piiblic Safety 

FuU-Time Positions 
Financial Administration: 

Accoimting 14 16 18 17 17 18 18 19 18 18 
Civil 20 20 21 23 21 21 21 21 21 20 
Occupational License 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Property Tax 9 9 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 
Pmc basing 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 

Sales Tax 13 14 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 12 
Support Services: 

Administration 7 7 6 5 6 6 6 7 7 6 

Bitilding Maintenance 5 6 4 4 3 3 3 0 0 0 
Commmiications-911 44 44 43 40 40 40 40 40 36 36 
Criminal Records 19 21 21 19 19 18 17 17 17 18 
Hmnan Resomces 9 10 9 10 10 9 9 9 9 9 
Information Systems 13 14 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 

Internal Affairs 2 3 4 3 2 3 3 3 2 2 
Professional Standards 4 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Public Affairs 3 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 
Radio Maintenance 0 0 3 5 5 5 5 5 3 3 
Training 13 10 11 11 11 12 12 12 13 12 

Vehicle Maintenance 9 11 9 8 8 7 7 6 7 7 
Law Enforcement Operations: 

Canine (K-9) 7 7 10 10 10 9 9 9 9 8 

Com't Secmity/Sex Offender 37 45 45 46 47 46 45 46 45 45 
Clime Laboratory 18 20 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 
Criminal Investigations-East 30 30 27 27 26 27 26 27 21 24 
Criminal Investigations-West 27 27 28 26 26 25 25 25 29 26 
Criminal Patrol District E 58 60 60 59 59 59 60 60 62 62 
Criminal Patrol District HI 53 52 48 50 50 50 50 50 49 49 
Criminal Patrol District IV 33 33 31 31 31 31 30 31 27 27 
Narcotics 17 19 19 21 20 20 20 20 19 19 
Special Operations 17 17 17 15 15 16 16 16 15 14 

Street Crimes 0 0 8 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 

Traffic 13 13 15 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 
Conections: 

Commissary 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
JaU EaciHty 164 188 187 185 186 177 177 177 169 190 

Re-Entry Program 7 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

JaU Medical 0 34 35 30 28 28 27 27 27 27 
Transitional Work Program 0 23 0 0 4 18 18 17 18 16 

Total FuU-Time Positions 674 780 746 732 731 736 732 732 710 725 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
FuU-Time Equivalent Employees By Function 
Last TenFiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 16 (Continued) 

Part-Time Positions 
School Crossing Guards 
All Other Departments 

23 
3 

23 
7 

23 
* 

23 
* 

23 
* 

23 
* 

23 
* 

23 
* 

21 
* 

18 
* 

T otal Part-T ime Positions 26 30 * * * * * * * * 

Total 700 810 769 755 754 759 755 755 731 743 

NOTE: 

Effective July 1, 2016, part-time employees were segregated from their departments and tracked separately (See *). Information 
related to part-time employees for previous fiscal years was tmavailable; as a residt, these amoimts have not been restated. 

SOETRCE: 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
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ST. TAMMANYPARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANYPARISH, LOUISIANA 
Operating Indicators 
Last T en Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 17 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Population - Total 256,327 253,602 250,088 246,056 242,470 239,344 236,844 234,565 231,224 229,252 

Calls for Service 211,781 215,586 305,412 297,025 292,747 279,330 274,036 271,683 288,700 323,943 
Events Generated (See Note) 224,661 224,424 183,008 182,309 170,105 148,522 148,360 158,301 165,241 161,993 

Assigned Cases 14,061 13,690 20,218 21,289 21,221 22,567 23,267 24,396 25,294 24,772 

Traffic Tickets Issued 5,412 5,006 4,255 5,680 5,074 6,007 7,858 11,209 12,951 14,661 

Crime Statistics: 

Murders 14 9 2 3 3 4 5 7 5 4 
Rapes 26 28 32 25 5 6 21 19 28 37 

Assaults 676 733 794 782 800 892 1,105 1,164 1,356 1,606 

Total Persons Crimes 716 770 828 810 808 902 1,131 1,190 1,389 1,647 

Robberies 29 20 19 20 23 15 24 24 17 27 

Burglary 325 416 322 364 405 601 654 555 583 719 

Theft 1,264 1,215 1,295 1,193 1,254 1,663 1,772 1,665 1,630 1,813 

Vehicle Theft 107 130 106 115 117 158 155 148 145 189 

Arson 9 9 8 14 7 14 10 12 10 23 

Total Property Crimes 1,734 1,790 1,750 1,706 1,806 2,451 2,615 2,404 2,385 2,771 

Total 2,450 2,560 2,578 2,516 2,614 3,353 3,746 3,594 3,774 4,418 

Estimated Value of Property Stolen $ 2,116,265 : S 2,461,075 : S 2,178,410 : S 2,951,434 : S 2,217,988 • $ 3,281,155 • $ 3,080,039 : S 3,788,694 : S 3,163,869 : S 3,040,179 

Estimated Value of Property Recovered C
O

 

S 271,852 : S 298,904 : S 871,571 • $ 465,829 • $ 459,175 • $ 215,988 : S 483,323 : S 257,556 : S 299,242 

Crime Rate per 1,000 Residents 9.56 10.09 10.31 10.23 10.78 14.01 15.82 15.32 16.32 19.27 

NOTE: 

SherifFRandy Smith encourages proactive police work resulting in additional events generated by deputies. Additionally, deputies receive requests for service via our crime app. 

SOURCES: 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
See Table 14 for Demographic Statistics. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Capital Assets By Classification 
Last Seven FiscalYears 
(Unaudited) 

Table 18 

Land 

Leasehold Commimication Other 

Improvements Buildings Equipment Equipment Vehicles 

Construction 

in Progress Total 

Public Safety 

Financial Administration: 

Accounting 

Civil 

Occupational License 

Property Tax 

Purchasing 

Sales Tax 

11 

12 

18 

7 

14 

1 

1 

6 

29 

Support Services: 
Acteiinistration 
Building Maintenance 

Communications-911 

Criminal Records 
Human Resomces 
Information Systems 

Intemal Affairs 

Professional Standards 

Public Affairs 

Radio Maintenance 

Training 

Vehicle Maintenance 

15 

95 

112 

40 
1 
2 
2 

149 

6 
13 
30 

43 
294 

3 
7 
1 

3 
7 
2 

3 
1 

16 

80 
123 

17 
51 
4 
2 
5 

171 
2 

9 
109 
46 

124 
540 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Capital Assets By Classification 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Table 18 (Continned) 

Leasehold Commimication Other Construction 

Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Equipment Vehicles in Progress Total 

Law Enforcement Operations: 

Canine (K-9) - - - - - 7 - 7 

Court Security/Sex Offender - - - - - 8 - 8 

Crime Laboratory - - 1 1 89 13 - 104 

Criminal Investigations-East - - - - 2 24 - 26 

Criminal Investigations-West - - 1 - 4 33 - 38 

Criminal Patrol District IE - - - - 26 57 - 83 

Criminal Patrol District HE - - 1 - 9 49 - 59 

Criminal Patrol District IV - - - - 6 46 - 52 

Narcotics - - - 5 40 27 - 72 

School Crossing Guards - - - - - 1 - 1 

Special Operations - - - - 84 99 - 183 

Street Crimes - - - - 7 - - 7 

Traffic - - - 1 19 29 - 49 
- - 3 7 286 393 - 689 

Corrections Division: 

Jail Facility 1 5 - 1 144 55 - 206 
Transitional Work Program - - - - 16 - - 16 

1 5 - 1 160 55 - 222 

Total-2018 4 7 9 120 751 589 . 1,480 

Total-2017 4 6 8 155 1,090 582 1 1,846 

Total-2016 4 5 8 169 1,053 573 1 1,813 

Total-2015 4 5 8 178 1,024 598 11 1,828 

Total-2014 4 5 7 179 987 634 16 1,832 

Total-2013 4 5 7 179 973 609 4 1,781 

Total-2012 4 3 6 188 884 527 3 1,615 

NOTE: 

The number of Capital Assets by Classification was compiled beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

SOURCE: 

St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Capital Assets By Function 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 19 

Public Safety 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Financial Administration: 
Accounting 7 9 9 12 12 11 11 
Civil 14 14 13 14 14 14 14 
Occupational License 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Property Tax - - - 1 1 1 1 
Purchasing 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Sales Tax 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

29 31 30 35 35 34 34 

port Services: 
Administration 17 17 18 14 18 17 17 
Bunding Maintenance 51 47 45 36 27 18 11 
Communications-911 4 5 5 15 8 4 4 
Criminal Records 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 
Human Resources 5 5 6 3 3 3 3 
Information Systems 171 147 133 127 139 129 113 
Internal Affairs 2 2 2 10 3 4 4 
Professional Standards - 4 - - - - -
Public Affairs 9 9 8 8 8 8 7 
Radio Maintenance 109 160 173 181 181 189 199 
Training 46 396 398 392 384 387 378 

Vehicle Maintenance 124 115 78 76 96 95 86 
540 910 869 864 869 857 825 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Capital Assets By Function 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Law Enforcement Operations: 

Table 19 (Continued) 

Canine (K-9) 7 5 - - - - -
Court Security/Sex Offender 8 6 7 8 6 6 6 
Crime Laboratory 104 104 103 102 104 103 100 
Criminal Investigations-East 26 29 30 12 38 26 26 
Criminal Investigations-West 38 36 33 52 54 32 32 
Criminal Patrol District n 83 90 93 96 100 104 82 
Criminal Patrol District III 59 63 61 60 69 72 52 
Criminal Patrol District IV 52 39 38 37 45 45 28 
Narcotics 72 77 77 85 83 76 69 
School Crossing Guards 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Special Operations 183 174 184 192 160 160 139 
Street Crimes 7 7 9 6 14 11 10 
Traffic 49 47 49 62 45 54 40 

689 678 685 713 719 690 585 

Corrections Division: 
Jail Facility 206 209 209 203 194 181 157 
Transitional Work Program 16 18 20 13 15 19 14 

222 227 229 216 209 200 171 

Total 1,480 1,846 1,813 1,828 1,832 1,781 1,615 

NOTE: 
The number of Capital Assets by Ftmction was compiled beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

SOURCE: 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
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LeBlanc Hausknecht, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR^S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Randy Smith 
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the St. 
Tammany Parish Sheriff (the Sheriff), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Sheriffs basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Sheriffs 
intemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sheriffs 
intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sheriffs 
intemal control. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

3421N. Causeway Blvd., Suite 701 • Metairie, LA 70002 • 504-837-0770 • 504-837-7102 (fax) • www.lh-cpa.net 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Sheriffs financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Sheriffs internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Sheriffs internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Metairie, Louisiana 

December 21, 2018 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Throtigh Grantor 

Program Title 

United States Department of Justice 
Passed throu^ the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement 

AREA Violence Against Women Fonnula Grant Program 
AREA Violence Against Women Fonnula Grant Program 
Multi-Jmisdictional Task Force 

Office of Community Oriented Pollicing Services 
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program 
Equitable Sharing Program (Asset Forfeiture Program) 

Tot^ United States Department of Justice 

United States Department of Trmisportation 
Passed throu^ the State of Louisiana 

Alcohol Impaired Driving Coimtermeasures Incentive Grants I 
Alcohol Impaired Driving Coimtermeasures Incentive Grants I 

Tot^ United States Department of Transportation 

CFDA 
Number 

16.588 
16.588 
16.738 
16.710 
16.742 
16.922 

20.601 
20.601 

Grant or Odier 
Number 

2018 
Expenditures 

2016-WF-01 3636 
2017-WF-014214 
2016-DJ-01-3499 
2017-ULWX-0011 
2016-CD-BX-0051 
Unknown 

2017-30-52 
2018-30-52 

5,376 
589 

30,782 
228,401 

25,560 
142,321 

433,029 

60,267 
142,893 

203,160 

Totd Federal Expenditures 636.189 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

A. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

B. The Sheriffhas elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance. 

C. The following is a reconciliation of total federal grant expenditures to the federal grant revenues 
reported on page 16 of the financial statements: 

Total Federal Expenditures $ 636,189 
Asset Forfeitm^ Fxpenditm^s for which no Revenue was received in the Current Year (96,102) 

Total $ 540.087 

Total Federal Revenues $ 540,087 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

SmCMARY OF AUDITOR'S BESULTS 

Fiaaidai Statemenis 

1. T^^ofaDdctor'sieport 

2. rnmjllH.mffl a-nd mtamjl ffwiitfinil nro- fwa-nriat fapnrftwy 

a. Material weaknesses idemified. 

"b. Sigoificaor defideacies disclosed duriag the iiidic of the 
statefneocs.. itot coflsidesed to be material weaknesses. 

c. Instances of noncompliance material to rite finafiwai statements of 
St Tammany Parish Sluriff, which, would be lequiied to be lepotted 
ta accordance wiih. Government AuAttog Standards. 

Unmodified 

None 

None 

None 

Federal Awards fSictf Audit Hot Reooired in Current Yearl 

3. Internal coflttoi over majiot federal award proffaffls; 

a. Material weaknesses idenrified. 

b. y^'gnHipa-nr dflfipianftpc jJantifiaJ nrt- tn Ko «na1gria1 

weaknesses. 

A Type of auditor's report issued on comrliance for major programs. 

5. Audit finding! disclosed tiut are recjuired in accordaihce with 
2 CFR section 200.516(a). 

6. Identification of majior programs: 

7. Dollar Threshold used to A<tifvwu<h between Type A and B programs. 

8. Auditeequalifiedasalcw-riskauditeemdef 2 CIllsectiDn200.520. 

T7jfl^pia1 

Nooe 

Federal Awards Finding and Questioned Costs 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

W/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

No management letter was issued 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFF 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana 

Agreed-Upon Procedures Report 
For the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 



LeBlanc Hausknecht, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

For the Period of July 1, 2017 -June 30, 2018 

To the St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 

and, 

and to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below as they are a required part of the engagement. 
We are required to perform each procedure and report the results, including any exceptions. 
Management is required to provide a corrective action plan that addresses all exceptions noted. For any 
procedures that do not apply, we have marked "not applicable." 

Management of the St. Tammany Parish Sheriff (the Sheriff) is responsible for its financial records, 
establishing internal controls over financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. These procedures were agreed to by the management of the Sheriff and the Legislative 
Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist the users in assessing certain controls and in evaluating 
management's assertions about the Sheriff's compliance with certain laws and regulations during the 
period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, in accordance with Act 774 of 2014 Regular Legislative 
Session. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Governmental Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any 
other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

CAPITAL ASSETS (follow-up) 

1) Obtain a listing of capital assets and obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

(a) Randomly select 25 assets from various locations from the assets listing, 
(b) Locate the assets and report whether the asset is tagged, 
(c) Observe that the information on the listing matches the location, description, manufacturer, 

model, and serial number of the asset. 
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St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
Agreed-Upon Procedures 
July 1,2017-June 30, 2018 

Results: We obtained a listing of capital assets and obtained management's representation that 
the listing was complete. Twenty-five assets were randomly selected at various locations from 
the capital asset listing. Two of the assets were found at a different location from the location 
noted on the capital asset listing provided by management. Management was unable to locate 
one of the selected assets. It was noted that this unlocated asset was fully depreciated. 

Management's Response: 

See attached letter from the Agency dated 12/14/18. 

PAYROLL AND PERSONNEL 

2) Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures over payroll/personnel, and observe 
that they address (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance 
records, including leave and overtime worked. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 

3) Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files 

Results: No exceptions were noted. We obtained management's representation that the listing 
of employees Is complete. 

4) Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period and obtain attendance records and leave 
documentation for the 5 employees selected above. 

(a) Observe that all selected employees documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, and elected official is not eligible to earn 
leave and does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected 
official is earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official should document 
his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

(b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees. 
(c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 

cumulative leave records. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 

5) Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. 

(a) Randomly select two employees/officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay 
rates used in management's termination payment calculations, 

(b) Agree the hours to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records. 
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St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
Agreed-Upon Procedures 
July 1,2017-June 30, 2018 

(c) Agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' 
personnel files. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. We obtained management's representation that the list of 
terminated employees Is complete. 

6) Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, 
retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have 
been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Results: We obtained management's representation that all payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health Insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been filed 
and paid by the required deadlines. 

DEPUTY SECURITY DETAILS 

7) Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures over deputy detail and observe that 
they address (1) required management approval, (2) maximum hours worked per day, (3) 
qualification requirements for working details, and (4) process for the reimbursement by the officer 
for departmental equipment used in the performance of the detail. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 

8) Obtain the detail calendar showing the deputies who have worked details for the period under review 
and management's representation that the detail calendar is complete. 

Results: We obtained the detail calendar showing the deputies who worked details for the period 
under review and management's representation that the detail calendar Is complete. 

9) From the detail calendar randomly select 10 employees working details, select one detail date worked 
for each, and review for the following: 

(a) Verify the employee is qualified to work details in accordance with the Sheriff's policy. 
(b) Obtain timesheets for the employee's shift on the date selected and the detailed sign in/sign out 

sheets and observe that the employee was not working a detail during their regular shift. 
Observe that on the date of the detail, total hours worked were not in excess of 18 hours, in 
accordance with the Sheriff's policy. 

(c) Obtain and inspect the employee pay stub for the pay week that the detail falls within and 
observe that the required equipment reimbursement fee of $3 per detail hour has been 
deducted for that pay period from the employee's payroll. If the detail was under contract, 
observe that the employee was paid on his or her paycheck for the correct number of detail 
hours worked. 

(d) Observe that the hourly rate was in accordance with the contract. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 
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St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
Agreed-Upon Procedures 
July 1,2017-June 30, 2018 

COLLECTIONS • SALES TAX 

10) Obtain a listing from management of all active businesses located within St. Tammany Parish and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. 

Results: We obtained a listing from management of all active businesses located within St 
Tammany Parish and management's representation that the listing Is complete. 

11) Randomly select one month during the fiscal period. Using the listing obtained above, randomly 
select 10 businesses (excluding service companies); obtain the monthly sales tax return for the 
month selected for each of the 10 businesses selected and: 

(a) Observe the taxes remitted were posted to the correct taxpayer account. 
(b) Recalculate the sales tax, including any penalty and interest due per the sales tax return, and 

observe that the amount remitted was in agreement with the sales tax return. 
(c) Observe that the taxes remitted are shown to have been credited to the correct revenue 

buckets and observe that the taxes paid out were to the appropriate agency. 
(d) Observe the total amount shown collected was included in the daily batch detail report. Trace 

the amount to the bank deposit slip and the actual deposit to the monthly bank statement. 
(e) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 

(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100). 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 

COLLECTIONS - OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE TAX 

12) Using the same 10 businesses selected above for sales tax testing, perform the following 
procedures: 

(a) Obtain a copy of the occupational license renewal form, recalculate the required tax remittance 
based on the reported sales tax using the applicable tax table, and observe that the tax remitted 
ties to the recalculation. 

(b) Observe that the amount remitted was posted to the correct taxpayer account. 
(c) Observe that the total amount collected was included in the daily batch detail report. Trace the 

amount to the bank deposit slip and the actual deposit to the monthly bank statement. 
(d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 

(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100). 

Results: LH obtained a copy of the occupational license renewal form and recalculated the 
required tax remittance based on the tax tables. All taxes remitted tied to the recalculation and 
were posted to the proper taxpayer account. LH observed that the total amount collected was 
accurately Included In the dally batch reports and traced each amount to the deposit slip and 
monthly bank statement. Three of the ten deposits weren't made within one day of receipt at the 
collection location. LH was not able to complete the testing for one selection because the date 
receipt stamp was unreadable. 
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St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
Agreed-Upon Procedures 
July 1,2017-June 30, 2018 

Management's Response: 

See attached letter from the Agency dated 12/14/18. 

ASSETS • FIREARMS AND BALLISTIC VESTS 

13) Obtain from management a listing of all deputies who have been issued a firearm and bullet proof 
vest, as well as an inventory sheet of weapons/vests issued, and management's representation that 
the listings are complete. Randomly select 10 deputies from the listing, obtain each deputy's 
personnel file, and: 

(a) Observe that the personnel file of each deputy selected for testing contains an annual 
inspection sheet, dated within one year of fiscal period, which demonstrates that the deputy 
was qualified for the assigned weapon and inspection of weapon serial number was verified in 
accordance with the Sheriff's policy. Observe that the qualifying deputy and the firearms 
instructor signed off on the inspection sheet. 

(b) For each of the 10 deputies selected, arrange to meet the deputies and verify the serial 
numbers of issued weapons and ballistic vests to the inventory sheets. 

(c) Observe that an inventory of unissued firearms and vests was taken within one year of the 
fiscal period and written documentation of supervisory approval is present. 

(d) Randomly select 5 items from the unissued weapons/ballistic vest inventory sheet and verify 
existence through observation. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. We obtained a listing of all deputies who have been Issued 
a firearm and bullet proof vest, as well as an Inventory sheet of weapons/vests Issued and 
unissued, and management's representation that the listing Is complete. 

INVENTORY - AMMUNITION 

14) Obtain a listing from management of all vendors approved for purchases of ammunition and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Observe that all vendors on the listing are 
valid state contract vendors for ammunition purchases. 

Results: We obtained a listing of all vendors approved for purchases of ammunition and 
management's representation that the listing Is complete, and verified that the vendor for 
ammunition Is a valid state contract vendor. 

15) Observe that an annual inventory has been taken of unissued ammunition within one year of the 
fiscal period and written documentation of supervisory approval is present. 

Results: No exceptions were noted. 
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St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
Agreed-Upon Procedures 
July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018 

CONCLUSION 

We were not engaged to perform, and did not perform, an audit, the objective of which is the expression 
of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and should not be used by those who have not agreed to 
the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 17, 2018 
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St Tammany Parish Sheriff's 
Office O 

RANDY SMITH, Sheriff 

PROFESSIONALISM • INTEGRITY • ACCOUNTABILITY • PUBLIC TRUST 

December 14,2018 

Agreed Upon Procedures Report 
Management's Response to findings 
Period July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018 

CAPITAL ASSETS (foUow-up) 
1. Results: We obtained a listing of capital assets and obtained management's representation that the 

listing was complete. Twenty-five assets were randomly selected at various locations from the capital 
asset listing. Two ofthe assets were found at a different location from the location noted on the capital 
asset listing provided by management. Management was unable to locate one of the selected assets. It 
was noted that this unlocated asset was jidly depreciated. 

Management's Response: The two assets in different locations than noted on the inventory 
list were moved for day-to-day operational purposes. One item, a computer tower, has been 
relocated when an employee was reassigned to another location. Second item, a check 
folding machine, recently broken and is being stored for parts. The unlocated piece of 
equipment, a generator, was fiilly depreciated in 2015. Last documented update to this asset 
was a change of description in 2014. This item had not reached our auditing threshold since 
it was fully depreciated prior to Sheriff Smith's administration. This equipment has been 
entered into the criminal database as stolen/missing property and is being removed from the 
schedule. 

PAYROLL AND PERSONNEL 
2. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
3. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
4. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
5. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
6. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 

DEPUTY SECURITY DETAILS 
7. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
8. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
9. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 

COLLECTIONS - SALES TAX 
10. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
11. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 

COLLECTIONS - OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE TAX 

Slideli Administrative Building P.O. Box 1229 Slidell, LA 70459 (985) 726-8000 
Covington Office P.O. Box 1120 Covington, LA 70434 (985) 809-8200 



12. Results: LH obtained a copy of the occupational license renewalform and recalculated the required tax 
remittance based on the tax tables. All taxes remitted tied to the recalculation and were posted to the 
proper taxpayer account. LH observed that the total amount colleaed was accurately included in the 
daily batch reports and traced each amount to the deposit slip and monthly bank statement. Three of 
the ten deposits weren't made within one day of receipt at the collection location. LH was not able to 
complete the testing for one selection because the date receipt stamp was unreadable. 

Management's Response: Occupational license is a department of four personnel serving as 
a collection counter for property tax, traffic tickets, criminal records and sales tax. These 
three instances were during times of high collections traffic for property tax and/or 
occupational license therefore high demand of personnel to greet and assist customers. At 
the close of the day, the payment and license documentation was secured in the vault. 
Personnel have been reminded payments are to be deposited within 24 business hours and 
backup assistance from sales tax personnel will be provided to prevent delayed processing. 
One payment was unable to be tested due to the date state being unreadable. Personnel have 
been advised to confirm the readability of the date stamps when scanned into the computer. 

ASSETS - FIREARMS AND BALLISTIC VESTS 
13. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 

INVENTORY - AMMUNITIGN 
14. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 
15. NO RESPONSE NECESSARY 

Respectfully submitted. 

Tiffany Carra; 
Deputy Chief of Administration 

Slidell Administrative Building P.O. Box 1229 Slidell, LA 70459 (985) 726-8000 
Covington Office P.O. Box 1120 Covington, LA 70434 (985)809-8200 




